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The Honorable James H. "Jim" M orris, President 
and M embers of the Caddo Parish Commission 
Government Plaza 
505 Travis Street 
Shreveport, Louisiana 71101-5409 

Dear Commissioners: 

In complian ce with Section 3-09 of the Home Rule Charter for Caddo Parish, we are pleased to 
submit the Primary Government Financial Report of the Caddo Parish Commission (the 
Commission) for the year ended December 31, 2003. Th ese finan cial statements present the 
primary governm ent only and do not include th e data of the discrete component units necessary 
for repo rting in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). These 
financial statements were audited in accordan ce with generally accepted govern ment auditing 
standards by a firm of licensed ce rtified public accountants. I be lieve this repo rt presents 
comprehensive information about the Commission's financial and operating activities during 
2003 th at is useful to taxpayers, citizens, and other interested  persons. 

Th is repo rt was prepared by the Department of Finance and consists of management's 
representations concern ing the finan ce s of the Commission. Consequently, management 
assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the inform ation 
presented in th is report. To provide a reasonable bas is for making these representations, 
management of the Com m ission has established an  internal control framework that is designed 
both to protect th e government's as sets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile suffi cient 
reliable inform ation for the preparation of th e Comm ission's fmancinl statements in conform ity 
with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the 
Comm ission's co mprehensive fram ework of intern al controls has  been designed to provide 
reas onable rath er than  absolute assuran ce  that th e finan cial statements w ill be free from material 
misstatement. W e assert that, to the be st of our knowledge an d belief, this financial repo rt is 
complete and reliable in all material respects. 

Section 3-09 of the Home Rule Charter for Caddo Parish requires that the Commission provide 
for an an nual independent audit of all accounts and financial transactions of the Commission by 
a firm  of independent certified public acco untants duly licensed to practice in th e state of 
Louisian a. Th e accounting firm of KPM G LLP was  selected by the Commission to conduct its 
annual audit. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the 
financial statements of th e Commission for the fiscal year ended December 3 l, 2003, are free of 
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material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management; en d evaluating the overall f'mancial statement presentation. The independent 
auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was  a reasonable basis for rendering an unqua lified opinion 
on the Commission's gnvernmentel activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, end the aggregate 
remaining fund information for the primary government. However, because the financial statements do not 
include financial data for the Commission's legally separate co mponent units, which accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United  States of America require to be reported with the financial data of the 
Comm ission's primary government, the Commission's financial statements do not purport to, and do not, pre sent 
fairly the financial position of the repo rting entity of the Commission as of December 31, 2003. Th e independent 
auditors' repo rt is presented as the first compo nent of the financial section of this repo rt. 

Th e independent audit of the financial statements of the Commission was part of a broader, federally mandated 
"Single Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal gran tor agencies. Th e standards govern ing Single 
Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial 
statements, but also on the audited  govern ment's intern al controls an d compliance with legal requirements, with 
special emphas is on intern al controls and legal requirements involving th e administration of federal awards. 
Th ese repo rts are available in the Commission's separately issued Single Audit Report. 

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic 
financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is 
designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The Commission's MD&A can be 
found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

PROFILE OF THE CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 

The Commission is the governing authority for Caddo Parish and is a po litical subdivision of the state of 
Louisian a. Th e Commission, under the provisions of Louisian a Revised Statotes 33:1271-1285, enacts 
ordinances, sets policy, and establishes programs in such fields as criminal and juvenile justice, highways and 
streets, sanitation, planning and zoning, public health and welfare, libraries, culture and recreational facilities, 
economic development, an d general administrative services. 

The Comm ission was established December 10, 1984, after voter approval of the Home Rule Charter for Caddo 
Parish on April 7, 1984. The Commission replaced the Caddo Par ish Police Jury which was  established 
Jan uary 18, 1838. 

These financial statements present the Commission (the primary governmen0 an d do not include the data of the 
discrete co mponent units nexessary for repo rting in co nform ity with generally accepted  accounting principles. 

Several agencies provide public serv ices to Caddo Parish residents and should be included in the financial 
statements of the Commission as  discrete component units. Finan cial data for these entities is not included in 
this report. Louisiana statutes do not require annual audited financial statements to be prepared for a majority of 
these units. Generally accepted accoun ting principles do not allow us to present unaudited or out of date 
information in our f'maneial statements. Since annually audited finan cial statements are generally not ava/lable 
from these units, we have elected to issue a repo rt covering only the Commission (the primary government). The 
entities thus excluded  are: 

Caddo Par ish Sheriff's Office  an d Tax Collector 

Caddo Parish Clerk of Court 

Caddo Parish Tax Assessor 

Caddo Community Action Agency 

Caddo Parish Communications District Number 1 



 

W aterworks District Number 1 

W aterworks  District Number 7 

W aterw orks  District Num ber 8 

Sewerage District Number 2 

Sewerage District Number 7 

Fire District Num ber 1 

Fire District Num ber 2 

Fire District Number 3 

Fire District Num ber 4 

Fire District Number 5 

Fire District Num ber 6 

Fire District Num ber 7 

Fire District Num ber 8 

Fire District Number 9 

North Caddo Hospital Service District 

BUDGETARY CONTROL 

The Commission maintains a system of budgetary controls, the objective of which is to ensure compliance with 
the annual appropriated budget. The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Commission's financial 
planning and control. Prior to Novem be r 1, the Parish Administrator submits to the Comm ission a proposed 
ope rating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following Jan uary 1. The operating budget includes 
proposed expenditures and the mean s of finan cing them. A public hearing is then conducted, after prope r offi cial 

journal notification, to obtain taxpayer comments. Prior to December 27, the budget is legally enacted through 
passage of an  ordinance. 

The budget ordinan ce is structured such th at revenues are budgeted by source, and appropriations are budgeted 

by department (function) or program expenditures. Th e Home Rule Charter provides that expe nditures may not 
legally exceed appropriations on a functional (departmental or program) basis. Expe nditures approved on a 
functional level are detailed by object account by the Parish Administrator and Finance Director. Revisions to 
the budget as enacted at the department (function) or program level require Commission action. Revisions at the 
object level can be approved by the Parish Administrator without seeking approval of the Commissioners. 
Several such revisions were made during the year ended December 31, 2003. 

LOCAL ECONOM Y 

The completion of the nearly $900 million General M otors expan sion has had a significant impact on the local 
economy. This project has resulted in a sign ificant increase in sales tax revenue since 2000. It has also 
contributed  to a 6.3% increase in 2003 prope rty tax revenue since th e ad ditional square footage was added to the 

property tax roll in 2003. The project will continue to have a positive impact on the local economy with the 
location of several General Motors suppliers in the Shrevepo rt area. These suppliers will create new jobs as well 
as require operational facilities which will provide additional property tax revenue. The Comm ission has worked 
closely with General M otors and several of its suppliers in th e ar ea of land acquisition and access to rail, roads, 
drainage, and utilities to facilitate their development. 

Overall, th e local economy is stable with a bright outlook. As th e nation's economy improves, the expectation is 
that the local economy will also. 
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During the 2004 budget process, the Commission addressed long-term financial concerns to ensure resources are 
available to meet future needs and allow for continuity of service s. This analysis revealed  an  immed iate concern 
in the area of criminal justice, primarily juvenile justice. Costs related to the juvenile justice system which 
includes the court operations and the juvenile detention center continue to rise at an alarming rate. The property 
tax millage dedicated to juvenilejustice has not been increased since 1957. 

To alleviate the funding crisis for juvenile justice, the Commission has called an election for Saturday, July 17, 
2004 asking voters to approve a 15% parish-wide sales tax that will provide essential funding for the juvenile 
justice system. Th e 15% sales tax would generate $5.3 million annually and allow the juvenile justice system to 
operate for the foreseeable future without the need  to ask taxpayers for more money. A significan t reduction in 
services will be necessary if the sales tax is not approved. 

CASH M ANAGEM ENT AND INVESTM ENTS 

Th e Commission has a cash management program which consists of pooling cas h and investments for all funds 
of the Commission except the Shreve M emorial Library. Available cas h was invested  in a special bank "sweep 
account" collateralized by obligations of United States government agencies or insure d by the Federal Deposit 
Insuran ce Corporation. Additional investments are accomplished through purchas es of obligations of th e United  
States Treas ury, obligations of United  States government agencies, and by participation in the Louisiana Asset 
M an agement Pool. 

RISK M ANAGEM ENT 

The Comm ission maintains limited risk man agement programs for general liability an d workers' compensation. 
As part of this plan , workers are trained  in accident prevention and hazard avoidance techniques. Third-party 
coverage of $3,000,000 is maintained for general liability claims. Retention limits are $50,000 per claim with an  
an nual aggregate total of $250,000. Th ird-party coverage is also maintained for workers' compensation cases 
above $300,000. In addition to the revenues co llected in the General Insurance Fund, resources are designated  
with in the General Fund for payment of potential claims. Th e Commission is partially self-insured for employee 
medical an d life insurance wi th third -party coverage for occurrences over $150,000 and aggregate stop-loss 
coverage for losses in excess of 125% of expected claims. 

PENSION AND OTHER POSTEM PLOYM ENT BENEFITS 

Substantially all Commission employees are members of the Parochial Employees' Retirement System of 
Louisian a. Employee payroll ded uctions of 9.5% of gross pay are partially matched by the Commission at a rate 
of 7.75% of gross wages. All deducted an d matched funds are remitted to the retirement system. Retirement 
benefits are administered by the statewide plan an d are not guaranteed by th e Commission. 

The Comm ission provides po stretirement healthcare be nefits an d life insurance, in accordance with state 
statutes, to  all retiring employees who were participating in the group insuran ce plan prior to their retirement 
da te. The Commission is self-insured for medical benefits including pus lretiremcnt healthcare benefits an d life 
insuran ce . 



The preparation of this report could not be accomplished without the ded icated and efficient services of the 
entire Department of Finance staff and the assistance of the Comm ission's independent auditors, KPM G LLP. 
Substantial recognition should also be  given to the Commission and our Parish Administrator, M r. W illiam T. 
Hanna, Jr., for their interest and support in conducting the financial operations of the Commission in a 
responsible and progressive man ner. 

Sincerely, 

Erica R. Bryant 
Director of Finance 
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KPM G LLP 
Suite 1900 
333 Texas Street 

Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Independent Auditors' Report 

M embe rs of the Caddo Parish Commission 
Shreveport, Louisiana: 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 
an d the agg~gntv remaining fund information of the Caddo Parish Commission (the Commission) as of 
an d for the year ended December 31, 2003, which collectively comprise the bas ic financial statements of 
th e Comm ission's primary governmen t as listed in th e table of co ntents. W e have also audited th e financial 

statements of each of the Commission's nonmajor governmental, internal service, and fiduciary funds 
presented as supplementary information in the accompan ying com bining fund financial statemen ts as  of 
and for the year ended Decembe r 31, 2003, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are 
th e responsibility of the Commission's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these 
financial statements based on our audit. 

W e conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to finan cial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by th e Comptroller General of th e United  States. Those standards require th at we plan  an d perform 
the audit to obtain re asonable as suran ce about wheth er the financial statements arc free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts an d 
disclosure s in th e finan cial statements. An audit also includes as sessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. W e believe th at our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

Th e financial statements referred to above include only the primary govern ment of the Commission, which 
consists of all funds, organ izations, institutions, agencies, departm ents, and offi ces that comprise the 
Commission's legal entity. The finan cial statements do not include finan cial data for the Commission's 
legally separate compo nent units, which accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America require to be repo rted with the finan cial data of the Commission's primary government, As a 
result, the primary govern ment financial statements do not purport to, and do not, present fairly th e 
finan cial position of the reporting entity oftbe  Commission, as of De.camber 31, 2003, and the changes in 
its finan cial position and its cash flows, where applicable, for the year then ended in co nformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In our opinion, the finan cial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund inform ation for the primary govern ment of the Commission, as of December 31, 2003, and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended 
in conformity with accounting principles generally acc epted in the United States of America. In addition, 
in our opinion, th e finan cial statements referred  to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of each nonmajor governmental, internal service, and fiduciary funds of the 



Comm ission as of December 31, 2003, and the respective changes in financial position an d cash flows, 
where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with a~ ounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

As described in note 11 to the basic finan cial statements, the Commission adopted the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and 
Management's Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments; GASB Statement No. 37, 
Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local 
Governments: Omnibus; GASB Statmn un t No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures; and 
GASB Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements in 2003. 

In acc, ordan ce with Government Auditing Stan dards , we have also issued our repo rt dated M ay 28, 2004 
on our consideration of th e Commission's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with ce rtain provisions of laws, regulations, co ntracts, and gran ts. That report is an integral 
part of an  audit performed  in accordance with Govern ment Aud iting Stan dards an d should be reed  in 

conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

The man agement's discussion and analysis, and budgetary comparison inform ation listed as Required 
Supplementary Information in the table of co ntents are not a required part of th e bas ic financial statements 
hut are supplementary inform ation required by accounting principles generally accepted in ",he United 
States of America. W e have applied certain lim ited procedures, which co nsisted  principally of inqniries of 
management regarding the methods of meas urement and presentation of the required supplementary 
inform ation. However, we did not audit the inform ation and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was co nducted  for the purpose of forming opinions on the finan cial statements that co llectively 
comprise the Commission's basic financial statements and on each nonmajor governmental, internal 
service, and fiduciary fund of the Comm ission. The introductory section, the individual fund schedules, 
an d the statistical section are presented for purposes of additional an alysis and are not a required part of 
the bas ic finan cial statements. Th e inlznd uctory section, individual fun d sched ules, an d the statistical 
section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements, and accordingly we express no opinion on th em. 

M ay 28, 2004 

C= LL'P 



 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

M anagement's Discussion an d Analysis 

December 31, 2003 

W e offer readers of the Caddo Parish Commission's financial statements this narrative overview and an alysis of 
the financial activities of the Caddo Parish Commission (the Commission) for the fiscal year ended December 
31, 2003. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional 
inform ation that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the new reporting model adopted by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - 
and Man agement's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments issued June 1999. Certain 
comparative information betwee n th e curran t year an d the prior year is req uired  to be presented in th e M D&A . 
However, bec ause th is is the first year of implementing th e new re porting model, certain necessary comparative 
information of the previous year was not prepared. Considering the financial resources necessary to prepare this 
information for the prior year, an d that the GASB Statement No. 34 permits the omission of the comparative 
information in the fast year of adoptiun  of the new repoRing model, the Commission has elected to exclude the 
inform ation in th is report. Subsequent reports will include the comparative information. 

Financial Highlights 

Key finan cial highlights for th e 2003 fiscal year include th e following: 

~ Th e assets of the Commission exceeded  its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $308,100,780 (net 
assets). Of this amount, approximately $12.7 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the 
Commission's obligations to citizens an d creditors. 

~ The total net assets of the Commission decreased by $923,527 for the year ended Decembe r 31, 2003, all of 
which relates to governmental activities. 

~ As of the close of the fiscal year, the Comm ission's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund 
balance  of $67,564,400, a decrease of $3,919,173 in comparison with the prior fiscal year. Of this amount, 
$37.9 million was unreserved , un designated , an d available for spending; $16.3 million was unreserved but 
designated for capital projects; $1.9 million was un reserved but design ated for subsequent years' 
expenditures and for future claims; $1.8 million was reserved for debt service; an d $1.2 million is held in a 
perm anent trust and can  only be used to make revolving loan s to the General Fund. 

~ At the end of the fiscal year, un reserved, undesign ated fund balan ce for the General Fund was $3.0 million 
or 50.4% of total General Fund expe nditures. 

~ The Commission's total long-term liabilities decreased $3.7 million (11.7%) during the fiscal ye ar primarily 
as a result of principal payments made during the year offset by additional borrowings of $5.4 million. 

O verview of the Financial Sta tem ents 

Th is M D&A is intended  to se rv e as an introduction to th e Comm ission's basic finan cial statem ents. The 

Commission's basic fin ancial statements comprise three components: (1) government-wide financial statements, 
(2) fund  finan cial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. Th is report also contains other 
supplem entary information in addition to the basic finan cial statements themselves. 



 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

M anagement's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31, 2003 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overview of the Comm ission's finances, in a manner sim ilar to a private-sector business 

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Commission's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the tw o reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a 
useful indicator of whether the finan cial po sition of the Commission is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Commission's net assets chan ged during the 
fiscal year. All chan ges in net assets arc reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change 
occurs, regardless of the timing of related  cash flows. Thus, rev enues and expenses are repo rted in this statement 
for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but 
unused vacation leave). 

Th e Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities distinguish functions of the Commission that are 
principally supported by taxes, intergn vernmental revenues, and charges for services (governmental activities) 
from other functions th at are intended to recover all or a sign ificant po rtion of tbe ir costs through user fees an d 

charges (business-type activities). Th e Commission's governmental activities include general government, 
criminal justice, health and welfare, high ways and streets, building facilities, drainage, sanitation, cultural and 
recreation, and econom ic development. The Comm ission did not report any business-type activities for the 
current fiscal year. 

A fend is a grouping of related acco unts th at is used  to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Th e Commission, like other state and 
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonsh'ate complian ce with finan ce -related legal 
requirements. All of th e fu nds of the Commission can  be divided into thr ee categories: govern mental funds, 
proprietary funds, an d fiduciary funds. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to accoun t for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the govern ment-wide 
finan cial statements, governmental fund finan cial statements focus on near-term  inflows and outflows of 
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable reso urces at the end of the fiscal year. Such 
information may be  useful in evaluating the Comm ission's near-term finan cing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide finan cial statements, it is 
usefu l to compare the information presented for govemmentel fends with sim ilar  information presented for 
governmental activities in the gn vem ment-wide fman cial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-term im pact of the Commission's near-term  financing dec isions. Both  the govern men tal fund Balance 
Sheet and the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a 
reco nciliation to facilitate this comparison be tw ee n govemman tal funds an d governmental activities. 
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The Commission maintains 24 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governm ental fu nds Balance Sheet and in the governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Chan ges in Fund Balan ces for the General Fund, Detention Facilities Fund, Shreve M em orial Library Fund, 

Road Construction Fun d, Head Start Fund, and the Capital Outlay Fund, all of which are considered to be major 
funds. Data for the other lg governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual 
fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements 
elsewhere in th is report. 

Th e Commission adopts an  an nual appropriated budget for its General Fund and certain special revenue fu nds 
Budgetary comparison sched ules have bee n provided to demonstrate compliance with these budgets. 

Proprietary funds. The Commission maintains only one type of proprietary fund, internal service funds, and 
th erefore does not report an y business-type activities in th e governman t-wide finan cial statements. Internal 
service funds are an  accounting device used to accumulate an d allocate costs internally am ong th e Comm ission's 
various functions. The Commission uses internal service funds to ac count for its health care, worker's 
co mpe nsation, an d fleet service s. Because these serv ice s predominantly benefit govern mental rather than 
business-type functions, they have been included w/thin govern mental activities in the goveroment-wide 
financial statements. 

Th e internal serv ice fu nds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the pro prietary fu nd finan cial 
statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form  of co mbining statements 
elsewhere in th e report. 

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary fimds are used to accoun t for resources held for the benefit of parties outside Caddo 
Parish. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements be cause the resources of 
those fun ds are not available to support the Commission's own programs. Th e acco unting used for fiduciary 
funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fu nd financial statements 

Other inform ation, in addition to th e basic finan cial statements an d accompan ying notes, th is re port also 
presents certa/n required supplementary/nformation concern ing the Comm ission's complian ce with budgets for 
its major funds. 

Th e combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds and internal 
service fu nds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on budgetary 
comparisons. 

Financial Analysis of Government-W ide Activities 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's finan cial position, in the 
case of the Commission, assets exceed liabilities by $308,100,780 at the close of the fiscal year. 

Th e largest portion of the Commission's net assets totaling approximately $237.8 million (77.2%) reflects its 
investment in capital assets (e.g. lan d, buildings, streets, drainage, machinery, and equipment) less any related 
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debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Commission uses thes e capital assets to provide 
services to citizens; consequently, th ese as se ts are not available for future spending. Although th e Commission's 
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources need ed to 
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital as sets themselves cannot be used to 
liquidate these  liabilities. 

Current an d other as sets 

Capital as sets, net 

Total assets 

Current and oth er liabilities 

Long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

N et assets: 

Invested  in capital assets, net of 
related debt 

Restricted  

Unre stricted 

Total net assets 

Net Assets 

Governm ental 
Activities 

$ 80,551,010 

237,790,940 

57,652,323 

12,657,517 

$ 308,100,780 

18.7% of net assets represent resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. Debt 
Service Funds account for $1,771,737 of the total of restricted net as sets. The remaining balan ce is monies 
restricted for highways and streets ($17.1 million), culture and recreation ($17 million), drainage ($4.6 million), 
sanitation ($4.5 million), criminal justice ($4 .3 million), building facilities ($3.8 million), and other restricted 
purposes ($4.6 million). 

The remaining balan ce of unrestricted  net as sets of $12,657,517 is used to meet the Commission's ongoing 
obligations to citizens an d creditors. 

At th e end of the fiscal year, the Comm ission is able to report positive balances in all th ree categories of net 
assets. 
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The Commission's net assets decreased by $923,527 during the fiscal year. The Commission's total revenues 
and expenses for governmental activities are reflected in the following chart: 

Changes in Net Assets 
For the Year Ended Dec ember 31, 2003 

Revenues; 

Program revenues: 

Charges for services 

Grants and contributions 
General re venues: 

Property taxes 

Sales taxes 

Gaming 

Other general revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 

General governm ent 

Criminal justice 
Health and welfare 

Highways and sa'eets 

Building facilities 
Drainage 

San itation 

Culture and recreation 

Economic development 

Intere st on long-term debt 

Total expe nses 

Decrease in net assets 

Net assets at beginning of year 
Net assets at end of year 

Governm ental 
Activities 

1,775,349 

19,393,649 

35,446,748 

5,421,578 

2,636,180 

2,663,822 

67,337,326 

3,954,248 

14,589,593 

I 1,992,466 

18,670,941 

4,074,079 

!,033,681 

1,856,858 

7,540,812 

3,372,689 

1.175.486 

68,260,853 

(923,527) 
309,024~307 

$ 308,100,780 

General revenues, specifically prope rty taxes and sales taxes, are the largest component of revenues (68.6%). 
Property taxes represent 52.6% of revenues at $35.4 million. Prope rty taxes increased during the fisca l year due 
to an increase in the property tax assessment resulting from the completion of new construction projects. 
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Revenue by Source - G overnm ental A ctivities 
4%  

n  

~52% [] Property taxes ~ Sales tax~ [] Gaming ~ Charg~ for ~rviees / i J 
~ Grants sad contributions 3%  I  i  

4%  ~1 'q E 
8%  ~ Other general revenues 

The Stateare~ of Activities shows that $1.8 n~lion was financed by those who use the services, $19.4 n'~llion by 
grants and contn'bufion s, and $46.1 million with the Corm~ssion's general revenues. 
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The Conm~ sion's four largest programs are ~  justice, health and welfare, highways and streets, and 
culture and recreation. The graph below shows the expem es and program  revenues generated by governmental 
a~ vities: 
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Financial Analysis of the Caddo Parish Com m ission's Funds 

Governm ental Funds 

As noted earlier, the Commission uses fund accounting to ensure an d demonstrate compliance with finan ce- 
related legal requirements. 

The focus of the Commission's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, 
and balances of spendable resources. Sueh information is useful in assessing the Commission's financing 
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful meas ure of the Commission's net 
resources available for spe nding at the end of the fiscal year. 

~ As of the close of the fiscal year, the Commission's governmental funds repo rted a combined ending 
fund balan ce of $67,564,400 a decrease of $3,919,173 in comparison with the prior fiscal year. Of this 
amount, $37.9 million or 56.1% was unreserved, undesignated, an d available for spending. $16.3 
million or 24% was unreserved but designated for capital projects. $1.9 million or 2.8% was 
unreserved but design ated for subsequent years' expenditures and future claims. The remainder of the 
fund balan ce is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already 
been committed (1) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior period ($2.4 million), (2) to 
pay debt service ($1.8 million), (3) to provide financial resources in the event era major interruption 
in services such as a natural disaster ($5.9 million), or (4) for other restricted purposes ($1.5 million). 

~ Th e General Fund is th e chief ope rating fund of the Commission. At the end of the fiscal year, 
unreserved  fund balan ce of the General Fun d was $4,122,442. Th e unreserved an d undesignated 
portion is $3.0 million. Th erefore, it is available for spending at the Commission's discretion. The 
Commission has chosen to designate funds for future claims an d subsequent ye ars' expe nditu res. The 
fund balance of the Comm ission's General Fund increased by $333,774. A key factor in this increase 
is a transfer of $450,000 from the Criminal Justice Fund . 

The Shrove Memorial Library Fun d has a total fund balance of $10,330,391. The majority of the fund 
balance ($9.6 million) is unreserved , undesignated, and available for spending. The remainder of the 
fund balan ce is reserved to liquidate co ntracts an d purchase orders of the prior period ($653,641 ) and 
for prepaid items ($74,513). Fund balance increased $539,002 largely due to la'ansfers from the 
Library Bond Fund to reimburse for capital expe nditures for the Library capital improvement program . 

Th e Detention Fac ilities Fund has a total fund ba lan ce of $106,352. Th e fund balance is design ated for 
subsequent year's expenditures. Th is fund accounts for the proceeds of a special ad valorem tax and 
other revenues dedicated  to the maintenan ce  and ope ration of the Caddo Correctional Center an d 
Juvenile Court Detention Facility. Fun d balan ce increased $25,710, largely due to transfers from the 
Criminal Justice Fund which provides operating subsidies to those funds with sign ificant criminal 

justice expenditures. 

~ The Head Start Fund accounts for federal monies received by the Commission that are passed through 
to the Caddo Commun ity Action Age ncy. No fund balance is ma intained, Th e funds pas sed through 

decreased from the prior year by $1,360,000. 
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~ The Road Construction Fund has a total fund balan ce of $7,195,895. Almost all of the fund balance  
($7,190,920) is un reserved, un designated, and available for spending. Th e remainder is reserved to 
liquidate contracts an d purchase orders of the prior period. The fund balance of the Road Consm~ction 
Fund increased by $276,910 due primarily to a reduction in the number of the road projects funded 
during the year. 

~ Th e Capital Outlay Fund has a total fund balan ce of $9,693,500. Of which, $g.3 million is unreserved 
but designated for capital projects and $l.4 million is reserved to liquidate contracts and purchase 
orders of the prior pe riod. A net decrease of $1,825,690 occurred during the fiscal year. Expe nditures 
in this fund are for specific projects as outlined in the Commission's capital projects budget and are 
not expec ted to be sim ilar from year  to year. 

Proprieta ry Funds 

The only proprietary funds the Commission maintains are the three internal service funds for hca lthcare, 
worker's co mpensation, and fleet serv ice s. Th e total net assets of the internal service funds were $3,102,345 
which was an  increase of $80,388 from the prior year. The increase is due to a dec rease in general liability 
claims an d a tran sfer of $44,905 from the Riverboat Fun d to the Fleet Services Fund. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The budget po licy of the Commission complies with state law, as amended , an d as set forth in Lo uisiana Revised 
Statutes Title 39, Chapter 9, Louisian a Lo cal Government Budget Act (LSA-R.S. 39:1301 et seq.). 

Th e original budget for the General Fund of the Ced do Parish Comm ission was ad opted on Decembe r 3, 2002. 
No am endments were made. Difference s betwee n the budget an d the actual results of the General Fund are as 
follows: 

Revenues 

~ Other taxes exceeded the budget by $89,085 due to delinquent tax collections which are not budgeted 
each year . 

~ Licenses and permits excee ded the budget by $29,809 as a result of increased collections of 
occupational license fees primarily due to additional efforts to collect unpaid fees. 

~ Intergovernmental revenues exceeded  the budget by $154,755 primarily due an  increas e in timber 
sales an d state revenue sharing. 

Expenditures 

~ Total 2003 Gen eral Fund expe nditures did not exceed the budget, however there were tw o fu nctions 
that exceeded the individual budget. Finance exceeded  its budget by $21,900 due to increased  salary 
costs fro m a tempo rary po sition that was not included in the budget. Allocations to other entities were 
$474 over budget due to increased costs for the Offlc~ of V~teran s Affairs. 
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Capital Assets and Debt Adm inistration 

Capital Assets: The Commission's investment in capital assets as of December 31, 2003 was $263,828,705 (net 
of accumulated depreciation). Th is investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, 
streets, drainage, furniture and equipment, and construction in progress. Th e table below shows the value at the 
end of the fiscal year. 

Land an d lan d improvements 

Buildings an d structures 

Equipment an d vehicles 

Infras tructure 

Construction in pro gress 

Total 

Capital Assets 
Decem ber 31, 2003 
(net of depreciation) 

Major additions to capital assets during the fiscal year included the following: 

Governm ental 
activities 

$ 12,962,400 
57,682,158 

7,724,551 

181,006,095 

4,453,501 

$ 263,828,705 

n Completed construction of five new libraries ($11.1 million). 
~ Accepted roads into the Commission maintenan ce system th at were built to Commission standards by private 

developers ($2.7 million). 
~ Added new turn lanes to General M otors Boulevard and Dinkins Drive, donated by the state of Louisian a 

($2.4 million). 

~ Purchased new librmy books and library equipment ($1.4 million). 

~ Purchased new street an d drainage equipment ($.9 million). 

Long-term debt: At the end of the fiscal year, the Commission had total debt outstanding of $26,049,019. The 
following table summarizes debt outstanding at De cember 31, 2003: 
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Outstanding Debt 
Decem ber 31, 2003 

General obligation bonds 

Certificates of indebtedness, net of deferred loss 
Total 

G overnm ental 
activities 

$ 11,570,000 
14,479,019 

$ 26,049,019 
::mm ffim~ ffiffi~ mm mmffi 

During the fiscal year, the Commission issued $2,060,000 of refunding certificates of indebted ness to advan ce 
refund a po rtion of the Series 1999 certificates of indebtedness in the m ount of $1,915,000. The outstanding 
principal balan ces of the Series 1999 certificates from December 1, 2005 through December !, 2009 were the 
balances subject to the advance refunding and are considered to be defensed . 

The Commission's general obligation bonds continue to maintain a rating of AA3 by M oody's InvestorS Service. 

For additional information regarding capital assets and long-term debt, see the notes to the basic financial 
statem ents . 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

Th e following economic factors were considered when the budget for fiscal year 2004 was prese nted to the 
Caddo Parish Commission: 

~ Th e anticipation of a 1%  increase in ad valorem revenue resulting from an  expected  gro wth in th e property 
tax as sessment. Ad valorem taxes represent 71% of the Commission's budgeted revenues. 

~ Th e increase in mandated costs from the state of Louisiana primarily in the criminal justice area. Criminal 
justice expe nditures represent 64% of the 2004 budget for the General Fund. 

a Th e overall economy which could have a significant impact on revenues. An ec onomic downtown would 
result in decreased sales tax revenue an d a decline in property values, since  2004 is a reassessment year. 

Requests for Information 

Th is finan cial repo rt is designed to provide a general overview of the Commission's finan ces for all those with 
an interest in the Commission's finan ces. Questions co ncerning any of the information provided in this repo rt or 
requests for additional finan cial inform ation should be addressed to the Director of Finan ce, Caddo Parish 

Commission, 505 Travis Street, Suite 850, Shreveport, LA 71101. 
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Cash an d cas h equivalents 
InvesUnents 
Receivables, net 
Due from other governmental agencies 
Inventories 
Bond issue costs 
Other assets 
Capital assets: 
Land and construction in progress 
Other capital as sets, net ofdeprcc iation 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Acc rued interest payable 
getainages payable 
Claims payable 
Due to other governmental agencies 
Deferred revenue 
Noncurrent liabilities: 
Due with in one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for: 
Criminal justice 
Highways an d streets 
Building facilities 
Drainage 
Sanitation 
Culture and recreation 
Other purposes 

Unrestricted 

Tota lnet assets 

See acc ompanying notes to basic finan cial statements, 
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Governmental 
activities 

$ 6,079,909 
36,105,613 
35,755,657 
2,471,160 

52,904 
11,254 
74,513 

17,415,901 
246,412,804 

344,379,715 

6,625,013 
703,480 
384,195 
252)38 
274,854 
783,575 
21,793 

4,598,932 
22,634,155 

36,278,935 

4,292,552 
17,124,067 
3,791,930 
4,610,390 
4,501,507 
16,987,118 
6,344,759 
12,657,517 

$ 308,100,780 



Functions/program  

Primary government: 
Govcmmcnt~d ~ti'vides: 
Gon ~al govcna'a~l~t 

Crimhtal justice 
Health an d welf~e 

Highways and sheets 
Building faci||fie~ 
Drainase 

Sanitation 

Cultural and reczr~ ion  
Economic dcvclng m~t 
Interest on long-term debt 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Statement of Activities 

Year ended December 31, 2003 

~grsm Reveaats 

O~ *ting 
grants and 

contributions 
Cbnrgas for 

~erviees 

$ 3,954,248 
14.589,593 
I 1.992,466 

18,670,941 
4,074,079 
1,033,68! 

1,856,858 

7,540,812 
3,372,689 
1, 175T486

,,' 

1,180,470 
139,809 

244,259 

103:741 

105,420 
1,650 

914,344 

S,77?,22S 

t,6~,0,284 
124,774 
167,916 

14,013 

432.512 
1.800,774 

ctpt~  

grants sad 

contributions 

436,423 

5,105,376 

I0,000 

Nel (expem ) 
revenuel and 

dmng es 

in net asm ts 
Gov~rnmeuthl 

activities 

68,260~853 117751349 13,841,850 5,551,799 
, ~47.091t855)_ 

Genera] revon ucs: 
Taxes: 
Prope~y t~ ~~ levied for general proposes 
Prope~  tuaes levk:d for debt service 
Sales taxes 
Franchise ta~es 
Gaming 

Grants and co~tti~utious txot ~stdcted to specific programs 

lnvestmcm ~arninss 
M i~ccllarcotls 

Total general revenues 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, bcginning 

Net assets, ending  

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

33,701,635 
1,745,113 
5.421,578 
175,M 2 

2,636,180 
1,159,918 
950,072 
377,990 

46,168,328 
.  

(723,527) 

309.024,307 

$ 308.100.750 
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CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Sl~ v~pol't, Louisiana 

Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 

December 31, 2003 

Memm~  De~m~m CIl~d Read OIler 
uIw~r~ F~IIII~ ~e~d Slart Out~  C~ m G~-rume~al ~ m~ml 
W=wa Fu=~ ~ ad Feral ~und ~  ]~=~ 

$ 94,~17 2~248.SS I --  --  
I.~ ,691 --  --  

7[,5611 
6.522 

400.939 
~ 1,492 

8~43.8~ 

~7Z37~ 

5~011,13~ 

2~5.9'/t 

I07,403 

1,1~ ,000 

27~544 

I~l,#l I 
7S.229 

:124.8611 

74,981 

4,219.569 
~10.421 
47flt031 

1,976 653,~II 

--  74.51~ 

~6~74g 

~ ,210 9~ 2~7 

78,718 

41124i418 ~  1~352 

5t6.TAt917 |Ot|39r~/9 

712,510 644,830 
7.675.~ 5 6.9~,92~ 

,19,501 
3,071,379 

326.204 
321,358 
44.794 

1.712,718 
206,0~ 

1.7~9,3~7 2.429.413 

3~262,675 
343,1~1 
102.623 
21~1t2 

3,471,1~0 

~895.693 I,|9S,360 ~606,511 
--  416,C61l 65~459 

232,931 

--  1o9,$$9 

--  252.93~1 
4,flOI,g99 IO,121,.168 
639,5[4 I,$71,417 
2110~QO 7113t$7S 

I,~1TT,276 4973 
1,771.737 
2411,8611 
5.8~ .946 
20Y.?20 
1,175,9416 

749,'?9,1 

7,941~47 

I~lg*,546 

1.771.73"/ 

S,859,946 
20~3"20 
1,175,916 
74,513 

9,1:10,342 
362.~43 

749,794 

1~766r367 
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Reconciliation of~e Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
to the Statement of Net Assets 

Year ended December 3 I, 2003 

Fund balances - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
net assets are different because: 

Capital as sets used in govem mem al ac tivities are not financial 
resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental 
funds 

Governmental capital assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Other as sets used in governmen tal activities th at are not financial 
re sources and therefore are not reported in th e governm ental 
funds 
Unam ortized bond issuance costs 

Some of the Commission's property taxes will be co llected after 
year-en d but are not available soon enough to pay for the current 
period's expenditures and therefore are deferred in the governmental 
funds 

Long-term liabilities including bonds  payable are not due and payable 
in the current period and therefore arc not reported  in th e 
governm ental fun ds  

67,564,400 

466,340,258 

(202~849~819) 263,490,439 

Accrued  interest payable (384,195) 
Compensated absences (1,184,068) 
Deferred loss on refunding 125,981 

Bonds, notes, and loans payable (26~ 175~000) 
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of 
certain activities to individual funds. The assets an d liabilities of 
the intern al service funds are reported with governmental activities 

Net as sets of governmental activities 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

11,254 

1,549,624 

(27,617,282) 

3~102~345 

$ 308 100,780 
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TM  $ 
IJccm~ md Fem ils 

Clm~zs f~ m vkms 
F~  aed ~,fei~res 
Gm J.S 
U~ d moncy told pro~aty: 
P.mW , ~  Era , s~d o~w  
I=v+.mmmt ~-.imll 
c~ nse in zhe M r vld~ d 
In~estmems 

ToUi 

~ dlar~ 
Cunem: 
Oeaa~ Bovanmm~ 
C-].dmd Jus~cc 
Hrad~ md Wdfm  
Hishways m~d Zm t~ 
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CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balan ces to the Statement of Activities 

Net change in fund balances-total governmental funds 
Amounts repo rted fur govern mental activities in the statement of 
activities are different because: 
Governmental fu nds report capital outlays as expenditures. However 
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated 
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense 
Capital outlay 
Depreciation expense 

Donations of capital assets increase net assets in the statemen t of 
activities, but do not appear in the gove~ mental fu nds because 
they are not finan cial reven ues 

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of the park 
lan d is repo rted, whereas in the govern men tal funds, the proce eds 
~,om the sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change in net 

assets differs from the chan ge in fund balan ce  by the cost of the 

land sold 
Revenues reported in the statement of ac tivities are not reported in 
governmental funds because they do not provide current finan cial 
resources. This adjustment is to recognize the net change in 
unavailable revenues (property taxes and special ussessments) 

Repayment of long-term debt is repo r~d as an  expenditure in 
governmental funds, but the repaymen t reduces long-term liabilities 
in the statement of net assets. In the cun~nt year, these em oou ts 
consist of: 
Principal paymen ts 
Paymen t of bond issue costs 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require 
the use of co rrent finan cial resources and, therefore, a~ not 
repo rted  as expenditures in govem man tal funds 
Amortization of deferred  loss on advance refunding 
A.mortiznfion of bond issue costs 
Increase in compensated absences 
Decrease in accrued  interest 
Loss on dispo sal of capitel assets 

Internal service funds are used  by management to charge the costs of 
certain activities to individual funds. The net revenue of the internal 
service funds is reported with governmental activities. 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

(3,919,173) 

8,226,570 

(I 3~650~314) (5,423,744) 

5,113,376 

(19,179) 

(405,651) 

3,800,000 
13,130 3,813,130 

(19,019) 
(t,876) 

(16o,958) 
41,702 

~22,523) (162,674) 

80p388 

$ (923,527) 



CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Statement of Net Assets 

Proprietary Funds 

December 31, 2003 

Assets 
Current assets: 
Cash and cas h equivalents 
Investments 
Rece ivables, net 
Due from other funds 
Inventories 

Total current asse ts 

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assets: 
Land 
Sewer line 
Buildings 
Vehicles 
Equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets (net of accmnulated depreciation) 
Total assets 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Accrued  insurance claims payable 
Due to other funds 

Total current liabilities 

Net Assets 

Invested in capital assets 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

See accom pan ying notes to basic financial statements 

Governm ental 
Activities 
Internal 

Service Funds 

$ 650,494 
2,273,635 

95,353 
227,697 
52,904 

163,475 
107,541 
14,579 
23,322 
134,428 

(105,079) 
338,266 

3,638,349 

18,432 
15,021 

274,854 
227.697 

536.004 

338,266 
2,764,079 

$ 3,102,345 



 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Statement of Reven ues, Expenses, an d Changes in Fund Net Assets 

Proprietary Funds 

Year ended December 3 I, 2003 

Operating Revenues  

Employer's contributions 
Employees' contributions 
Charges for sales and services 

Total operating revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Claim s 
Cost of sales and service 
Insurance premium s 
General and administrative 
Depreciation 
Other 

Total operating expe nses 

Ope rating loss 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expe nses) 
Investment earnings 
Interest expense 

Total nonoperating revenues 

Incom e before transfers 

Transfers in 

Chan ge in net assets 

Total net assets, beginning 

Total net assets, ending 

See accompanying notes to bas ic finan cial statements. 

21 

Governm ental 
Activities 
Internal 

Service Funds 

2,117,832 
696,032 

2,199,560 

5.013.424 

2,707,945 
1,147,616 
806,149 
306,838 
12,444 
33,964 

5,014,956 

(1,532) 

39,936 

(2,921) 
37.015 

35,483 

44,905 

80,388 

3.021.957 



CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 

Year ended December 31, 2003 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Contributions 
Receipts from operations 
Paym ents to suppliers 
Claims paid 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from noneapital financing activities: 
Interest paid 
Transfers in 

Net cash provided by capital and related finan cing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities : 
Purchase of investments 
Sales of investments 
Interest rec eived 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of yeas 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided  by 
ope rating activities: 

(Increase) decrease in assets: 
Accounts receivable - other 
Inventow  
Due from other funds 

to net 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accrued insurance claims payable 
Aecotmts payable 
Accrued  liabilities 
Due to other funds  

Total adjustments 
Net cash provided by ope rating activities 

Noncash item s: 
Net decrease in the fair value of investments 

See accompan ying notes to basic fin ancial statements. 

Governm ental 
Activities  
Internal 

Service Funds 

$ 2,952,930 
2,210,989 
(2,385,396) 
(2,756~424) 

22~099 

(2,921) 
441905 

41r984 

(121,134) 
112,884 
61#92 
53.742 

117,825 

532,669 

6501494 

(11532) 

12,444 

75,734 
(4,386) 
74,761 

(4s,479) 
(26,703) 
15,021 
(74t761) 
231631 

22r099 

(17,031) 



 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 

Fiduciary Funds 

Decem ber 31, 2003 

Asaeta 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 
Due from other government agencies 

Total as sets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Due to other governm ental agencies 

Total liabilities 

See accompan ying notes to basic finan cial statements. 

30,731 
2,166 
77,296 

110,193 

69,156 
41.037 

110,193 



CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 3 I, 2003 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The Caddo Parish Commission (the Commission) is the governing authority for Caddo Parish an d is a 
political subdivision of th e state of Lo uisiana. Th e Commission, under th e provisions of Louisiana 
Revised Statutes 33:1271-1285, enacts ordinances, sets policy, and establishes programs in such fields as 
criminal and juvenile justice, highways and streets, sanitation, planning and zoning, public health and 
welfare, libraries, culture an d recreational facilities, economic development, and general administrative 
services. 

The Comm ission was established December 10, 1984, after voter approval of the Home Rule Charter for 
Cuddo Parish on April 7, 1984. The Commission replaced the Caddo Parish Police Jury which was 
established Jan uary 18, 1838. 

Th e bas ic criterion for determ ining whether a govern mental departm ent, agency, institution, 
commission, public authority, or other governmental organ ization should be included in a primary 
governmental unit's repo rting entity for government-wide finan cial statements is finan cial 

accountability. Financial accountability includes the appo intment of a voting majority of the 
organiza tion's governing body an d th e ability of the primary govern ment to im po se its will on th e 
organ iza tion or if there is a financial benefit/burden relationship. In addition, an  organization which 
is fiscally dependent on the primary government should be  included  in its reporting entity . 

Th ese financial statemen ts present on ly the Caddo Parish Commission (the primary government) 
an d do not include the data of the discrete co mpo nent units necessary for reporting in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other th an th e exclusion of th e data of the discrete compo nent units, th e acco un ting policies of th e 
Com m ission conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as 
applicable to governmental units. Th e following is a summ ary of the more significan t policies: 

(b) Government-Wide and Fund Financial Stateme nts 

During the current year , th e Comm ission adopted the provisions of Governm ental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's 
Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments. See note 11 for additional information. 

Th e government-wide financial statements (GWFS) (i.e., the statement of net assets and the 
statement of activities) report inform ation on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Commission. 

Th e statement of net as sets presents inform ation on all of the Commission's assets and liabilities, 
with the difference  between the two repo rted as net assets. Over time, increas es or decreases in net 
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the finan cial position of the Commission is 
impro ving or deteriorating. 

(Continued) 



CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31, 2003 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that ate clearly identifuable 
with a specific function or segm ent. Depreciation expense is identified by function and is included 
in the direct expe nse of each function. Interest on general long-term debt is considered an indirect 

expe nse and is reported separately on the statement of activities. Program  revenues include: 1) 
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, service s, or 
privileges provided  by a given function or segm ent an d 2) grants and contributions that are restricted 
to meeting the ope rational requirements of a particular  function or segm ent. Taxes an d oth er items 
not prope rly included  am ong program reven ues are reported  instead as general revenues. 

Separate fund f'mancial statements (FFS) are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, 
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the GWFS. Major individual 
governmental funds are re ported  as separate co lumns in th e FFS. 

(e) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accoan ting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
Th e government-wide financial statements are reported  using the economic resources measurement 
focus an d the accrual basis of accounting, as are th e pro prietary fu nd and fiduciary fu nd financial 
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned an d expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred , regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Prope rty taxes are recognized as revenues in 
the year for which they are levied. Grants an d similar items are recogn ized as revenue as soon as all 
eligibility requirements have be en met. 

Governmental fund finan cial statements are reported using the current finan cial resources 
measurement focus an d th e modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as th ey are both meas urable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current pe riod or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. 
For th is purpose, th e Conunission considers revenues to be available if they are collected w ithin 60 
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expe nditures generally are recorded  when a liability is 
incurred, as under acc rual acco unting. However, debt service expe nditures, as well as expe nditures 

related to compensated absences and claims and jed gm ents, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Ad valorem taxes are co nsidered "meas urable" at th e time of levy whereas item s such as  beer taxes 
are considered "meas urable" when in the han ds of intermediary collecting age ncies an d are 
reco gn ized as revenue at that time. Substantially all other nnn-intergovero mental revenues are 
susceptible to acc rual an d are recogn ized when earned  or the un derlying transaction occurs. Sales 
taxes are accrued  in the individual funds to which they pe rtain. For intergovernmental revenues, the 
legal an d co ntractual requirements of the numerous individual pro gr am s are used as guidance. 
Grants and similar items are recogn ized  as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements have been 
met. In reimbursement type programs, monies must be expended on the specific purpose or project 
be fore an y am oun ts will be paid to the Commission; therefore revenues are reco gn ized based upon 
the expe nditures reco rded. In other programs in which monies are virtually unrestricted as to 
purpose of expenditure an d are usually revoc able only for failure to comply with prescribed 
complian ce requirements, the re sources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if 
the susceptible to accrual criteria are met. 

(Continued) 



CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Notes to Basic Finan cial Statements 

December 31, 2003 

The accounts of the Commission are organ ized on the basis of funds, eac h of which is considered a 
separate ac co un ting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self- 
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance /retained earnings, revenues, an d 
expenditures/expenses. Th e various funds are summarized by type in the financial statements. The 
following fund types are used by the Commission: 

Governm ental Funds 

Governmental funds are those th rough which most governmental functions of the Commission are 
finan ced. Th e acquisition, use, and balances of the Commission's expe ndable finan cial resources 
and the related liabilities (except those accounted for in proprietary funds) are accounted for through 
governmental funds. Th e Commission reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fun d - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Commission. It is used to 
account for all financial resources exco p~ those required to be acco unted for in another fund. 

-  Th e Detention Facilities Fund accounts for th e proceeds of a special ad 
valorem tax an d oth er revenues ded icated to the maintenan ce an d operation of th e Caddo 

Correctional Center an d Juvenile Court Detention Facility. 

Head Start - Th e Head Start Fund accounts for fed eral monies received by th e Commission th at are 

passed through to the Caddo Commun ity Action Agency. 

Shreve M emorial Library Fun d - The Shreve M emorial Library Fund accounts for the proceeds of a 
special ad valorem tax an d other revenues dedicated to the ope ration of th e Shreve M emorial 
Library system . 

Road Construction Fund - Th e Road Conslruetion Fund accounts for the proceeds  of a sales tax 
approved by the voters in 1989. Th e tax was  dedicated to capital improvement of ro ads an d bridges. 
The fund also accounts for the proceed s of a portion of the gas oline tax levied by the state of 
Louisian a. Th ese funds are dedicated to road an d bridge improvement by the state. 

Capital Outlay Fund - The Capital Outlay Fund was established to account for capital expenditures 
and capital projects still in progress. Monies for the Capital Outlay Fund are provided through 
transfers from var ious funds of the Commission. 

Additionally, the Commission reports the following govern mental fund types 

Special Revenue Fun ds - Special Revenue Funds are used to accoun t for the proce ed s of specific 
reven ue sources that are legally restri~ed to expenditures for specified purposes. 

Debt Service  Fun d - The Debt Serv ice Fund is used to acco unt for the accumulation of resources 
for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related  costs. The Debt 
Service Fund receives a dedicated  portion of ad valorem taxes paid to the Commission. 

(Continued) 



CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31, 2003 

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be 
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. These funds are also used to 
account for the construction of public improvements which are to be ultimately financed through 
assessments to individual pro perty owners. 

Permanent Funds - In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, Nonexpe ndable Trust Funds are 
now referred  to as Permanent Funds. The Jail Site Permanent Fund was established  in accordan ce 
with a government man date by the legislature to acc ount for the proceeds from the sale of certain 
prope rty in down town  Shreveport. The fu nd is nonexpendable and may only be utilized for the 
purpose of making revolving loan s to th e General Fun d. 

Proprietary Fund Type 

The Proprietary Fund type is used to account for the Comm ission's ongoing organ izations and 
ac tivities which are similar to those often found in the private sector. The Internal Service Funds are 
the only Proprietary Funds maintained by the Commission. The Internal Service Funds are used to 
acc oun t for the financing of services provided by one fund of the Comm ission to other funds on a 
cost-reimbursement bas is. Th e following are the Commission's Internal Service Funds: 

Group Insurance Fund - The Group in surance Fun d is used to acco unt for employee medical and 
life insurance coverage. 

General Insurance Fund - The General Insurance Fund 
workmen 's co mpensation insuran ce coverage and claim s. 

is used to account for cas ualty an d 

Fleet Services - The Fleet Service s Fun d is used to account for the vehicle an d equipment repair 
serv ices pro vided  by the Comm ission's Central Garage location. 

Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary Funds are used to accoun t for assets held by the Commission in a trustee capacity or as an 
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, and/or other funds. 

Agency Funds - Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not present results of operations or 
have a measurement focus. Th e Criminal Court Fund was established in accord ance with a 
government manda te by the legislature to account for the proc eeds from the ope rations of the First 
Judicial District Court. All fines, court co sts, and bond forfeitures impose d by the Court are 
ded icated to trial costs and other operating expenditures. Th e Jury Fund was established  in 
accordan ce with a government mandate by the legislature to account for the pro ceed s from a special 
fee assessed on criminal cases. The fees are used to provide compensation of jurors in criminal 
m atters. 

(Continued) 



CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Sluevepo rt, Louisiana 

Notes to Basic Finan cial Statements 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the governmental activities column in the 
GW FS. Capital assets are recorded  at historical cost or estimated  historical co st for assets where 
actual historica l cost is not available an d depreciated  over their estimated  useful lives. Donated 
capital assets are recorded  at their estimated  fair value at the date of donation. The Commission 
maintains a threshold level for capitalization of capital assets except lan d. All lan d is capitalized, 
regardless of the amount. All other capital assets are capitalized utilizing a threshold of $5,000 for 
land improvements, buildings and building improvements, furniture, equipment, vehicles, an d 
constrn ction in progress. Infrastructure is capitalized utilizing a threshold of $200,000 for ro ads, 
$75,000 for bridges, $50,000 for drainage ditches, and $5,000 for solid waste. The costs of normal 
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the as set or materially extend assets lives are 
not capitalized. 

Capital assets are not repo rted in the FFS. 

Estimated useful life is management's estimate of how long the asset is expected to meet service 
deman ds. Capital as sets have not been assigned a salvage  value because man agement feels that the 
salvage value is immaterial. Straight-line depreciation is calculated based on the following estimated 
useful lives: 

Land impro vements 
Buildings 
Building im provements 
Sewer line 
Drainage 
Roadways 
Bridges 
Solid W aste 
Vehicles 
Equipment 

20 years 
40 - 45 years 

20 years 
50 years 

15 - 30 years 
20 - 40 years 

40 years 
15 years 
5 years 

5 - 20 years 

In th e GW FS, an d proprietary fund types in th e FFS, long-term debt and oth er long-term obligations 
are repo rted as  liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, bas iness-type activities, or 
proprietary fund type statement of net as sets. Bond prem iums and discounts, as well as  issuance 
costs, are deferred an d amortized over the term of th e related debt. Bonds payable are repo rted net of 
the applicable bond premium or discount. 

In the FFS, governmental fund types recogn ize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond 
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported  as other 
finan cing sources. Premiums received  on debt issuances are repo rted as other finan cing sources 

(Continued) 



CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 3 I, 2003 

while discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from 
the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, an d other commitm ents for the 
expenditure of funds are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is 
employed  in the Commission's governmental funds. Every appropriation, except an appropriation 
for a capital expenditure, will lapse at the close of the fisc al year to the extent it has not been 
expended . Open encumbrances are reported as reservations of fund balan ces since the commitm ents 
will be  honored through subsequent years' budget appropriations. Encumbran ces do not constitute 
expenditures or liabilities. 

State statutes authorize the Commission to invest in United  States bonds, treas ury notes an d bills, or 
certificates or time deposits of state banks organized un der Louisiana law an d national han ks having 
principal offices in Lo uisiana. In addition, local governments in Louisiana are auth orized to invest in 
the Louisiana Asset Management Pool Inc. (LAMP), a nonprofit corporation formed  by an initiative 
of the State Treas urer and organ ized un der the laws of the state of Louisian a, which operates a local 
government investment pool. Investments of the Commission are stated  at fair value. Investments, 
excluding the LAM P investm ents, arc held in the Commission's name through a book-entry system 
at the Federal Reserve Ban k. 

Inventories are valued at cost using the first in, first out (FIFO) method. Inventory in the Intemal 
Service  Fun d consists of parts, signs, an d fu el. Inventories are accounted for using the purchase 
method. 

Deferred revenues for ad valorem taxes represent those amounts of current year taxes not received 
within the 60-day period after December 31. Certain licenses are collected  in advance; therefore, the 
recogn ition of revenue is deferred un til the following year. 

In addition, deferred revenues in the Road Construction Capital Projects Fund exist because paving 
as sessments receivable are collected over several years. Revenue will be  reco gnized as paving 
assessments receivable become current. As paving assessments bec ome current but are not collected, 
the receivables then become delinquent. These receivables are secured by the property improved by 
the assessments an d are th erefore collec tible. Delinquent re ceivables are immaterial. 

(l') Vacation and Sick Leave 

Full-time Commission employees may earn from 9 to 21 days of annual leave an d 12 to 24 days of 
sick leave pe r year depe nding on length of serv ice. Upon resigning, employees may be paid for 
accumulated annual leave. Retiring employees are not paid for accrued an nual leave, but th ey are 

(Continued ) 



CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

given credit toward retirement length of service. Similarly, employees are not paid for accrued sick 
leave upon resigning or retiring, but accru ed sick leave may be applied against total employment 
years at retirement, 

Full-time Shreve M emorial Library employees may earn from 12 to 22 days of annual leave and 6 to 
15 days of sick leave annually depending on length of serv ice. Employees may accrue a maximum 
of 44 days of annual leave and 60 days of sick lea ve. Any accrual over the maximum  is forfeited. 
Em ployee s re sign ing or r~iring from the Library with  proper notice are paid for th eir accrued 
annual leave. Accumulated  sick leave is canceled upon termination or retiremen t with no cred it 
toward retirement length of service. 

The Commission participates in two pa nsion plan s which are administered by other governmental 
entities. These plans cc vcr substantially ali ~ aployee s who meet c~ctain length of serv ice 

requirements (see note 7 for details of these plans). 

Use of the term  "reserve" in describing governmental fund "fund balances" an d proprietary fund 
"net assets" indicates that a po rtion of the fund balan ce or net assets is not appropriable for 
~xpan dittw~ or is l~gally s~grcgatvd for a specific futu~  use. The nature and purpose of these 

re serv es are explained as follows: 

Debt Service 

This amount re presents the po rtion of fund balance that has been reserved in the Debt Service Fund 
for future paym ent of principal an d interest on bonded  debt an d revenue bonds. 

(Continued) 



CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Notes to Basic Finan cial Statements 

December 31, 2003 

Revolving Loans to General Fund 

This amount represents the total fund balan ce of the Jail Site Perman ent Fun d, which as man dated 
by the Louisiana State Legislature, is reserved for and restricted to providing a source of funding for 
the purpose of making annual revenue anticipation loans to the General Fund. 

Contingencies 

This represents the fund balance of the Reserve Trust Fun d, established to provide financial 

resources in the event of a major interruption in budgeted revenues, a cataslrophic natural disaster, 
an  extraordinary eooun mic development opportunity, or other occas ion requiring immediate 
emergency funding need s or cas h flow loan demand. 

Industrial Development 

This amoun t represent~ the total fund ba lance of the Economic Development Special Revenue Fund, 
which is reserved for industrial development in Caddo Parish. 

Use of the term "designated" in describing governmental fund "fund balance s" indicates that a 
portion of the fund balan ce  has been segregated to indicate tentative plans for future financial 
resource  use. The nature an d purpose of  th ese designations are explained as follows: 

Designated  for Future Claims 

Th is am ount represents a portion of fund balance that has been designated to fund possible claims 
and losses from lawsuits. 

Des ignated for Subsequent Year Expenditures  

This amount represents a po rtion of the current year fund balance that has been design ated in the 
subsequent year budget to cover an ticipated expenditures in excess of revenues. 

(n) lnterfund Receivables and Payables 

All outstanding balan ce s be twee n funds are repo rted as due to/from other fu nds. There is no activity 
between fu nds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements at the end of ~ e fiscal year. 

Th e Criminal Court Agency Fund includes receipts an d disbursements of the First Judicial District 
Court. The monies in the fund are not available for use by the Commission. However, state law 
requires th at the Commission fund all deficits of the fund an d entitles the Comm ission to one-half of  
any surplus. These tran sactions are acco unted for as receipts or disbursements of the Criminal Court 
Fund and the General Fun d as applicable. 

Federal an d state governmental agencies represent an  impo rtant source of supplementary funding to 
finan ce housing, employment, construction program s, an d other activities beneficial to th e parish. 
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These funds, primarily in the form of grants, are recorded in the General, Special Revenue, and 

Capital Projects Funds. A grant receivable is recorded when the Commission has a right to 
reimbursement under the related grant. Th e grants normally specify the purpose for which the funds 
may be  used  an d are audited annually under the single audit approach as man dated in OM B Circular 
A-133. 

For purposes of th e statement of cash flows, the Commission considers all highly liquid investments 
with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased  an d its investment in the Louisiana 
Asset Man agement Pool (LAMP) to be cash equivalents. 

(2) Cash and Investments 

(a) Deposits 

All depo sits of the Commission are held by area financial institutions. At Decembe r 31, 2003, the 
carrying amount of the Commission's cash deposits, including fiduciary funds, was $2,628,311 and 
the bank balance was $1,989,766. Under state law, these deposits (or the resulting bank balan ces) 
must be secured by fed eral deposit insurance or the pled ge of securities owned by the fiscal agent 
bank. The fair value of the pled ged securities plus the fed eral deposit insurance  must at all times 
equal the amount of the depo sit with the fiscal agent. 

Of the bank balan ce at December 31, 2003, $175,766 was covered by federal depository insurance 
and $1,814,000 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging finan cial institution. 
Collateral sec urities were held in the Commission's name by the Federal Reserve Bank and require 
Comm ission approval in order to re lease the collateral. 

The Commission maintains a pooled cash and investments account for all funds of th e Commission. 
Each fund's positive eq uity in the pooled cash account is prese nted  as  "Cas h and Cash Equivalent" 
or "Investm ents" in the statements. Negative equity balan ces have been reclassified  an d are reflected 
as interfund accounts payable. Interest income and interest expense are allocated to each re spective 
individual fu nd monthly, based on th eir respective fund balan ces. 

State statutes authorize the Commission to invest in direct obligations of the United  States Treasury , 
United States government agency obliga tions, LAMP, or certificates and time certificates of depo sit 
of state ban ks organized un der  the laws of Louisian a and national banks having their principal office 
in the state of Louisiana. 

Th e Commission's investments, with the exception of the LAM P, are considered  to be Category 1. 
Category  1 includes investm ents that are insu red or registered or for which the securities are held by 
the Commission or its safekeeping agent in the Commission's name. Th e U.S. Treas ury an d agency 
obligations are held in the Comm ission's name through a book-entry system at the Federal Reserve 
Ban k. The Commission's investm ents an d deposits at De cember 31, 2003 include the following: 
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Carrying 
am ount and 
fair value 

U.S. government and U.S. government agency 
obligations $ 36,105,613 36,105,613 

Repurchase Agreement 43,235 43,235 
Lo uisiana Asset Management Poo l (LAMP) N/A 3,439,094 

Total investm ents 39,587,942 
Total deposits 2,628,311 

Cash, cash equivalents, an d investm ents $ 42,216,253 

Investments in LAM P are not categorized above because they are not evidenced by securities that 
exist in physica l or book enh'y form. LAM P, a local gn vemment investment pool, is administered by 
LAM P, Inc., a nonprofit coq)oration organized under the laws of the state of Louisiana. W hile 
LAM P is not required to be a registered investment compan y under th e Investm ent Compan y Act of 
1940, its investm ent policies are similar to those established by Rule 2-a-7, which governs registered 
money m arket funds. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which 
local governments in Lo uisian a are authorized to invest. The dollar weighted average portfolio 
maturity of LAM P assets is restricted to  not more than 90 days, and consists of no secur ities with a 
m aturity in excess of 397 days. Th e fair value of investments is determ ined  on a weekly basis to 
monitor any variances between amortized cost an d fair value. For purposes of determ ining 
participan ts' shares, investm ents are valued at am ortized cost. LAMP is designed  to be highly liquid 
to give participan ts immediate access to their account balan ces. 

The Comm ission levies taxes on real an d business personal prope rty located within Caddo Parish's 
bo undaries. Property taxes are levied  by the Commission on property values assessed by the Caddo Parish 
Tax Asse ssor and approved by the state of Louisiana Tax  Commission. 

Th e Caddo Parish Sheriff's Offi ce bills an d collects property taxes for the Commission. Collections are 
remitted to th e Commission month ly. Commission property tax revenues are recogn ized when levied to th e 
extent th at th ey are collected within 60 days  after year-end. 

Levy date 
Tax bills mailed 

Property Tax Calendar 

Total taxes are due 
Penalties an d interest are added  
Lien date 
Tax sale - 2003 delinquent pro pe rty 
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January 1 
Not later th an  June 1 
On or abo ut November 25 
Dece mber 31 
Jan uary 1 
Jan usIy l 
On or about M ay 25, 2004 
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The Comm ission is permitted to levy taxes up to 10% of the assessed prope rty valuation for each spe cified 
purpose , or, in the aggregate for all purposes, 35%  of the asse ssed valuation for the payment of principal 
and interest on long-term debt aRer approval by the voters of the parish. A total of approximately 
$405,197,425 of additional bonded debt is available for issuance pursuant to the 35% limitation. Property 
taxes are re corded  as receivables an d revenues in the year assesse d, net of combined estimated allowance 
for unco llectible accounts of $1,718,741. Taxes totaling $1,440,034 not co llected within 60 days have 
been deferred in th e FFS. 

Assessed values are established by the Caddo Parish Tax Assessor each year on a uniform bas is at the 
following ratios to fair value: 

10%  lan d 
10% residential improvements 
t 5%  industrial impro vements 

15% machinery 
15% co mmercial improvements 
25% public service  properties, 
excluding land 

A revaluation of all prope rty is required to be completed  no less than every four year s. Th e las t re valuation 
was completed for the roll of Jan uary 1, 2000. Total assessed  value was $1,190,764,070 in 2003. 
Louisian a state law exempts the first $7,500 of assessed  value of a tax payer's primary residence from 
parish property taxes. This homestead exemption was $296,544,450 of the as sessed value in 2003. 

The distribution of the Commission's levy (tax rate pe r $1,000 assessed value) to its funds was as follows 
for 2003: 

Fund 

General Fund 
Road an d Bridge 
Courthouse M aintenance 
Detention Facilities 
Parks an d Recreation 
Solid W aste Disposal 
Drainage 
Juvenile Court 
Criminal Justice 
Health Unit 
Shreve M emorial Library 
Biomed ical 
Debt Service 

property within 
Shreveport or 

Vivian 

$ 3.70% 
5.04%  
3.08% 
6.03%  
0.95% 
0.20%  
1.31%  
2.23%  
1.82%  
2.29% 
9.92%  
1.88%  
1.95% 

40.40% 

Property outside 
Shreveport and 

Vivian 

7.40%  
5.04%  
3.08% 
6.03%  
0.95%  
0.20%  
1.31%  
2.23%  
1.82%  
2.29%  
9.92%  
1.88%  
1.95%  

44.10%  
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(4) CapRal Assets 

A summary of changes in capital assets is as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land and land improvements $ 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not 

being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and structures 
Equipment and vehicles 
Infrastructure 

Balance, 
December 31, 

2002 Additions 

11,445,135 1,536~44 
5~501~772 

Balance, 
Dec ember 31, 

Retirements 2003 

(19,179) 
. (13,500,376) 

12,962,400 
4,453,501 

23,897,240 7,038~16 ,, (13,519,555) 17,415,901 

63,030,741 
21,221,136 
348,032,242 

11,189,751 
3,222,343 
5,390,012 

(2,718,523) 
74,220,492 
21,724,956 
353,422,254 

Total capital assets being 

depreciated 432,284rl 19 19,802,106 (2,718,523) 449,367,702 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings  and structures 

Eq uipment an d vehicles 
Infrastructure 

(14,911,841) 
(14,994,777) 
062,081,522) 

(1,626,493) 
(1,701,628) 
(10,334,637) 

2,696,000 
(16,538,334) 
(14,000,405) 
(172,416,159) 

Total accumulated 

depreciation (191t988,140) (13,662,758) 2,696,000 (202,954,898) 
Total capital assets be ing 

depreciated, net 240,295~979 6,139~348 (22,523) 246,412,804 

Capital assets, net $ 264,193,21~  13,177,564 ~  263,828,705 

At December 31, 2003, construction in progress largely consisted of approximately $3,043,148 in a 
construction project related to a fireproof stairwell at the Caddo Parish Courthouse. 
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The Commission leas es the Shreveport Regional Lab to the State Departm ent of Health and Hospitals 
under an operating lease expiring in June of 2009. The building being leased has a cost of $1,496,340. 
M inimum future rentals to be  received are as follows: 

Years ending December 31 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 - 2009 

Am ount 

145,000 
145,000 
145,000 
145,000 
290,000 

Depreciation expe nse was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General Government $ 66,766 
Criminal Justice 950,780 
Health and W elfare 264,374 
Highways an d Streets 10,473,826 
Building Facilities 401,989 
Drainage 618,502 
Sanitation 103,340 
Economic De velopment 738,844 
Culture and Recreation 44,337 

Total depreciation expense -governmental activities $ 13,662,758 

(5) Long-Term Debt 
The following is a summary of th e long-term obligation activity for the year ended De cember 31, 2003 

Governmental activities: 

Gon efal obligation bonds payable 

Deferred loss 

Certificates of indebtedness 

Claims and judgments payable 
Compensated absences 

Beginning Ending 
balance Additions Reductions balance 

$ 13,035,000 1,465.000 
145,000 

I 1,570,000 

(125,981) 

Due within 

one ~enr 

16,795,000 2,060,000 4,250,000 14,605,000 2,445,000 
323,333 2,707,945 2,756,424 274,854 274,854 

1,023,110 746,902 585,944 1,184,068 598,932 

Goverrmtental activity long-term liabiliti~s $ 31,176,443 5,533,866 9,202,368 27,507,941 4,873,786 
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Long-term debt at December 31, 2003 is comprised of the following issues: 

General obligation bonds - applicable to general parish operations: 

$13,685,000 1995 Refunding Bonds, due in annual installments of 
$1,080,00O  to $1,685,000 fi3ro ugh February !, 2009; interest at 4.35% 
to 5.50% $ 8,790,000 

$3,425,000 1998 Refunding Bonds, due in an nual installments of 
$40,000 to $4 20,000 through February 1,2011; interest at 3.75% 
to 4.65%  

Total general obligation bonds payable 

$3,500,000 Certificates of Indebtednes s, Series 1999, due in one final 
annual installment of $350,000 on December 1, 2004 

$7,000,000 Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 2001, due in annual 
installments of $1,080,00O  to $1,g0O ,00O  through March I, 2006; 
interest at 3.24%  to 3.9%  

$9,000,0O 0 Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 2002, due in annual 
installments of $360,00O to $1,135,000 through  March 1, 2012; 
intere st at 2.875%  to 3.7%  

$2,060,000 Refunding Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 2003, due in 
annua l installments of $25,00O to $420,000 through  December I, 2009; 
interest at 1 .o% to 3.5% 

Total certificates of indebtedness 

Total long-term debt 

11,570,000 

350,000 

3,580,000 

8,640,000 

2,035,000 

14,605,000 

$ 26,175,000 

The an nual requirements, excluding a deferred loss of $114,111, to amortize all debt outstanding as of 
Decem ber 31, 2003 are as follows: 

Years ending December 31 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 - 2012 

Governm ental activities 

$ 4,000,000 
4,085,000 
4,105,000 
3,140,000 
3,300,0O0 
7,545,000 

$ 26,175~000 
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990,690 
839,175 
675,252 
525,290 
388,779 
459,860 

3,879,046 

4,990,690 
4,924,175 
4,780,252 
3,665,290 
3,688,779 
8,004,860 

(Continued) 



CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31, 2003 

Principal payments of $1,465,000 plus interest of $615,770 on the bonds payable were paid from the Debt 
Service Fund. Principal paym ents of $2,335,000 plus interest of $519,578 on the ce rtificates of 
indebtedness were paid from the Riverboat Fund and the Shrove M emorial Library Fun d. 

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bo nd indentures and the 
certificates . M anagement believes the Commission is in substantial co mpliane.~ with all significant 
limitations and restrictions. 

General obligation bonds are direct general obligations of the Commission. Principal and interest are 
payable from ad valorem taxes levied on all taxable property within the parish. 

In M arch 1998, the Comm ission issued  $3,425,000 of general obligation refunding bo nds  to advance 
refund a portion of the Series 1991 A and the Series 1991 B general obliga tion bo nds in the amounts of 
$2,445,000 an d $695,000, respectively. The Series 1991 A an d B bonds are cons idered defensed an d the 
liability for those bonds has been removed from the general long-term obliga tion. At Decembe r 31, 2003, 
the outstanding balance on the 1991 A an d 1991 B refunded bonds was $2,095,000 and $595,000, 
respectively. 

In 1995, the Commission issued $13,685,000 in general obligation refunding bonds to advan ce refu nd a 
portion of the 1989 Series general obligation bonds in the am ount of $12,580,000. Th e outstanding 
principal balan ces on the 1989 series bo nds from February 1, 2001 to February 1, 2009 were the balances 
subject to the advance refunding and are considered to be defensed. Th e outstanding balance of the 
defens ed bo nds at December 31, 2003 is $8,675,000. 

In 2003, the Commission issued  $2,060,000 of Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 2003. The net proceeds 
of $2,046,870 (after paym ent of $13,130 in costs of issuance) were used to defense the 1999 Series 
Certificates of Indebtedness of $1,915,000. The reacquisition price exceeded  the net carrying amount of 
the old debt by $145,000. This amount is being netted against the new debt an d am ortized over seven 
years, which is equal to th e life of the old debt an d the life of the new debt. Amortization for 2003 was 
$19,019. The difference be tween the cash flows required to service the old debt an d the cash flows 
required to service the new debt and complete the refunding totaled $66,374. An economic gain 
(difference betw een the present value of the old and new debt service paym ents) of $63,412 resulted from 
th e refunding. 
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(6) Other Required Individual Fund Disclosures 

(a) Interfund Receivables and Payables 
Individual fund interfund receivable an d payable balances at December 31, 2003 were as follows: 

Due from Other Funds 
General Fund 
Road Constroction Fund 
Capilal Oullay Fund 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds 
Debt Service Fund 
Permanent Fund 

Due to Other Fun ds  

Geuero l 
Fund 

455,098 
2,585,923 
1,178,548 

Nonmajor 
Special 
Revtan e 
Funds  
400,959 
1,712,718 
2,616,481 

71,741 

4,801,899 

400,959 
1,712,718 
3,O71,579 
2,585,923 
1,178,548 
71,741 

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are 
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, 
and (3) payments between funds are made. 

(b) Transfers 

A reconciliation of operating transfers follows: 

sk~  el~m jl.- Nmulajer 
I)~mllo* Mem lill P+md Clan4 s~da cl~lel lalRul 

CeJ,era IladHa ub~-~ Cmmvob. Om~y ~  ~  

Rotd Commelk~ Ftmd $ 4,7~,~0 -- -- -- 4,775,M0 
Cltpilll OelPly Feed --  -- -- 3,258 --  212,9OI 2.29O 21|,449 
Nolw r Sp(~ilJ Reveetle ~  450.G00 1,79o.c~o -- -- 2,TT4,433 2.257,114 --  44,9Q5 7,316,452 

~  mla~  Clpitld Plloj~~ IfUl~ -- ~  41739103 [ ~  l$+lJOO -- -- -- 41574133| 

S
, 

4.~01~  
, ir'~ O00 4r7391031 3t25g 7r&llat433 ~  ~  44,9~ 17 1|7,~2 

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them 
to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt 
service  from the fu nds collecting the receipts to th e debt service fund as debt service payments 

become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various 
programs accounted for in other funds in accordan ce with budgetary authorizations. 
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The Capital Outlay Fund was established to budget and monitor the status of ongoing capital 
projects and expenditures. The funding for this fund is provided primarily through transfers from 
various other funds of the Commission. 

(c) New Funds 

In 2003, the Comm ission established the Lo uisiana Community Development Block Grant Fund as a 
special revenue fund to account for fed eral monies rece ived  by the Commission to provide funds for 

projects that allow for the development of viable urban commun ities by providing decent housing 
an d a suitable living environment. Also in 2003, the Commission established the Jury Fund as an 
agency fund. The establishment of this fund was man dated by the legislature to account for the 
proceed s from a special fee assessed on crim inal cases. Th e fees are used to provide compensation 

(7) Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

The Commission provides retiremen t, death, an d disability benefits to its employees through two 
pension plans administered by other governmental entities. 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (Parochial Plan) 

Plan Description - Substantially all Commission employees are membe rs of th is co st-sharing 
multiple-employer public employee statewide plan administered by the Parochial Employees' 
Retirement System. All clas sified  parish employees who work at least 28 hours per week an d are 
under 60 years of age are required to become membe rs of the plan on the date of employment. 
Benefit provisions are established in accordance with Lo uisiana State Statute. The Parochial Plan  
issues a publicly available finan cial report that includes finan cial statements an d required 
supplementary information. Th at report may be obtained by writing to the Board of Trustees of the 
Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisian a, P.O. Box 14619, Baton Rouge, Louisian a 
70898. 

Funding Policy - Covered employe es ate required to contribute 9.5% of their salary. Th e 
Comm ission is required to co ntribute 7.75% of covered employees' salaries. Th e employer an d 
employee contribution obligations are established an d may be amended by Louisiana State Statute. 
The Comm ission's contributions for the years ended  December 31, 2003, 2002, an d 2001 were 
$816,716, $772,537, and $713,755, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 
The plan 's pension liability was determined in acco rdance with GASB Statement No. 27 an d 
eq ualed  zero before an d aider the transition. 

City of Shreveport Employees' Retirement System (City Plan) 

Plan  Description - Substantially all employees of the Shreve M emorial Library are members of this 
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined be nefit plan  which is administered by the City of 
Shreveport. Enrollment is man datory for full-time perman ent employees. Benefit provisions are 
established an d may be amended by Shrevepo rt City ordinance. The City of Shreveport issues a 
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publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information of the City Plan . That report may be obtained by writing the City of Shrevepo rt, P.O. 
Box 31109, Shreveport, Lo uisiana 71130. 

Funding Policy - Plan membe rs are required to contribute 5% of their salary. The Commission is 
req uired to contribute 9.15% of ce vered employees' salaries. This total contribution rate is allocated 
between the City Plan an d the ERS Employer Contribution Plan  which is a savings plan for 
members. Under this employe r allocation, 5.0% is contributed to the retirement plan and up to 
4.05% is contributed to the savings plan based  on a matching of the member's contributions. Any 
amounts not matched are contributed to the retirement plan. Th ese percentages can vary from year to 
year bas ed on actuarial evaluations, but in no case will the employer total rate of 9.15% change. Th e 
employer an d employee contribution obligations are established an d may be am ended by Shrevepo rt 
City ordinance . Th e Commission's contributions for the years ended Decembe r 31, 2003, 2002, and 
2001, were $228,608, $202,637, an d $191,623, respectively, equal to the required contribution for 
each year. Th e plan's pension liability was determined in accordan ce  with GASB Statement No. 27 
an d equaled zero before an d after the transition. 

(8) Post-Employment Healthcare Benefits 

In addition to the pension be nefits described  in note 7, the Commission provides postretiremen t be althcare 
benefits an d life insuran ce, in accordance  with state statutes, to all retiring employee s who were 
participating in the group insurance  plan prior to their retirement date. The Commission is self-insured for 
medical be nefits including postretirement healthce re benefits and life insurance. Currently, there are 101 
retirees ~ ceiving life insurance coverage and 84 rece iving health ca re benefits. Th e Comm ission 
reimburses 80% of the amount of validated claims for med ical and hospitalization co sts incurred by pre- 
M ed icare employe es an d th eir depe ndents. The Commission also reimburses 80% of M edicare 
supplemental benefits for retirees over the age of 65. Expe nditures for po stretirement healthca re benefits 
are recognized in the year claim s are incurred. During 2003, expe nditures of $319,442 were recognized for 
po stretirement healthcare. In addition, expe nditures of $9,000 were reco gnized  for life insurance be nefits 
paid during 2003. 

(9) Contingencies 
Litigation 

The Commission is a defendant in several lawsuits involving civil actions. In the opinion of legal counsel, 
the Comm ission's ultimate exposur e is unknown at this time. It is the policy of the Commission to pay 

judgments against the Commission on a current basis from current revenues. Settlements from litigation, 
insurance, and liability claims are included in General Insurance Fund expe nditures. 

The Commission is involved in litiga tion with a certain local governmental agency. Th is suit was decided 
in the Comm ission's favor en d has since  been appealed to the Lo uisian a Supreme Court. If found liable, 
the Commission could be  respo nsible for paying retroactive expe nses relating to this matter. 
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The Comm ission participates in a number of state and federally assisted grant programs. Th e pro grams are 

subject to compliance audits under the single audit approach. Such audits could lead to requests for 
reim bursement by the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. Commission 
management be lieves that the amoun t of disallowances, if any, which may arise from future audits will not 
be material. 

The Commission is expo sed  to various risks of loss related  to torts; theft of, dam age to, and destruction of 
as sets; errors an d omissions an d natural disasters. The Group Insurance Fund is used to account for self- 
insurance activities involving group med ical an d life insurance coverage for Commission employees. Th e 
Genaral Insurance  Fund is used to account for self-insurance  activities involving workers' compensation 
and ga neral liability claims. 

Th e Commission maintains property, general, automobile, an d excess liability insurance coverage. The 
limit of coverage on the general liability policy is $1,000,000 pe r occurrence an d $3,000,000 in the 
aggregate. Th e exce ss liability policy co ntains an additional aggregate lim it of $1,000,000 for general 
liability claims. The Commission is self-insured for med ical benefits an d workers' compensation 
coverage. Employees contribute for medical be nefits coverage, and each department that pays salaries 
contributes for both med ical an d workers' co mpensation coverage. The Commission maintains stop-loss 
coverage with an insuran ce co mpany for medical claims in excess of $150,000 pe r occurrence with an 
aggregate total of 125%  of expected  losses. Stop-loss co verage is also ma intained for workers' 
compensation cases above $300,000. Settlements have not exceeded  insurance coverage for each of the 
past three fiscal years, and there were no redactions in insuran ce coverage  from co verage in the prior year. 

Payments to th e Internal Service  Funds are accoun ted for as revenues by th e receiving fu nd an d 
expen ditures/expense s by th e paying fu nds. Paym ents into th e fund are available to pay claims an d 
adm inistrative costs of the se lf-insuranca  pro grams. Paym ents in excess of actual expe nses are recorded as 
transfers. At December 31, 2003, $2,251,119 and $685,499, respectively, are reported as Group Insurance 
Fund an d General Insuran ce Fun d net asset balan ce. 

All self-insuran ce pro grams are accounted for within internal Service Funds. The Commission has 
included  incurred but not reported claims in determining its claims liability in both self-insurance 

programs. 

Liabilities are repo rted  when it is probable that a loss has oc curred and the am oun t of the loss can  be 
reasonably estimated . Claim liabilities are calculated consider ing the effects of inflation, recent claim 
settlement trends including frequency and amount of payouts and other economic an d social factors, 
including the effects of specific, incremental claim adjustment expenses, salvage, and subrogation. Th e 
claims liability of $243,270 and $31,584 reported in the Group Insuran ce  an d General Insuran ce Funds, 
respectively, at Decembe r 31, 2003 are based on the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10. 

(Continued) 



CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Changes in the Group Insuran ce Fund's claims liability amount in fiscal years 2002 an d 2003 were: 

2002 
2003 

Beginning of 
fiscal year 
liability 

$ 198,608 
286,816 

Current year 
claims and 
changes in 
estim ates  

2,070,258 
2,451,410 

Claim 
paym ents 

1,982,050 
2,494,956 

Balance, 
fiscal yea r 

end 

286,816 
243,270 

Changes in the General Insuran ce Fund's claims liability am ount in fiscal years 2002 and 2003 were: 

2002 
2003 

Beginning of 
fiscal year 
liability 

27,447 
36,517 

Current yea r 
claims and 
cbanges in 
estim ates 

28~484 
256,535 

Claim 
payments 
280,414 
261,468 

Balance, 
fiscal year 

end 

3~517 
31,584 

(11) Changes in Accounting Principles 
For the year ended December 31, 2003, the Commission implemented GASB Statement No. 34, Basic 

Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments; 
GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements - and Man agement's Discussion and Analysis -for 
State an d Local Governments: Omnibus; GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note 
Disclosures; and GASB Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and 
Expenditures in Governmental Fund Finan cial Statements. 

GASB Statement N o. 34 creates new basic financial statem ents for reporting on the Comm ission's 
financial activities. The finan cial statements now include management's discussion and an alysis, 
government-wide fman cial statem en ts prepared on the accrual basis of ac counting, an d fund financial 
statem ents which present information for individual major funds rather than by fund type which had been 
the mode of presentation in previously issued financial statements. Nonmajur funds are presented  in total 
in one column in the fun d finan cial statements. In addition, the financial statements also include new 
footnote disclosures and the direct method of cash flows statement. 
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CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Notes to Basic Finan cial Statements 

December 31, 2003 

The implementation of GASB Statement No. 34 caused the opening fund balances at December 31, 2002 
to be  repo rted in terms of "net assets" as  follows: 

Total Fund Balan ces - Governmental Funds - at December 3 I, 2002 
Add: Cost of capital assets at December 31, 2002 

Less: accumulated depreciation at 
December 31, 2002 

Deferred revenue on property taxes at December 31, 
2002 

Internal service funds at December 31, 2002 
Contributed Capital - Fleet Serv ices Fund 
Perm anent Fund - Jail Site Fund at December 3 I, 2002 
Special Revenue Fund - Economic Development Fund at 
Decem ber 31, 2002 

Special Revenue Fund - Reserv e Trust Fund at 
Decem ber 31, 2002 

Less: Long-term  debt: 
Debt outstanding at December 3 l, 2002 
Compensated absences payable at 
Decem ber 31, 2002 

Accru ed interest payable at December 31, 2002 

455,738,014 

(191,895,505) 

1,955,275 
2,683,801 
338,156 

1,157,888 

524,833 

5,087,587 

(29,830,000) 

(1,023,110) 
(425r897) 

$ 64,913,265 

244.111.042 

Adoption of GASB Statements No. 37 an d 38 were required simultaneously with GASB Statement No. 34 
and resulted in additional disclosures. At December 31, 2002, there was no effect on fund balance as a 
result of implementation of GASB Interpretation No. 6. 



REQUIRED SUPPLEM ENTARY 
INFO RM A TIO N 



 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, an d 
Changes in Fund Balan ce - Budget and Actual on a Budgetary Basis 

General Fund 

Revenues : 
Taxes: 

Ad valorcm 
Other taxes, penalties, end inten:st 

Licenses and permits 
Intergovemmental - state of Louislana: 

Oil ~ad gas severance tax 
Bur tax 
Timber severance pay 
State revenue sharing 

Gaming 
Use of mo~ y and property: 

Interest earned 
Net docaease in the fair value of investments 

Other revenues 

Total revenues 
Expenditures: 

C,-~  ~'al government: 
Commission 
Administration 
Human Resources 
Finance  
Information Systems 
Elections 
LSU Extension 
M etropolitan Planning Commission 
Archives 
AIIc~ations to Oth~" Entities 
M iscellaneous 

Criminal Justice 
Health and W elfme 

Total expe nditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Other finanoing sources: 
Transfers in 

Year ended December 31, 2003 
(unaudited) 

Excess (deficiency) ofrev~nues and other 
financing sources ovor (unde0 
expe nditutes and other financing uses 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

Ordinal 
and final 
budget 

3,81~280 
148,000 

3,9621280 

380,500 

6,500 

5,519,2g0 

(708,1i6) 

450,0OO 

450~000 

(258J16) 
3,790~ 4 

$ 3,532,$28 

45 

Actual 

40,162 

(I .02S) 
39,134 

21,024 

5,7sb!54. 

(116,226) 

45goop 
450,000 

3~790,fi44 
4,124 418 

Varttare wi|b 
final budget 

positive (negative) 

(14,433) 
89,~ s 

74,652 

29,809 

00,838) 
I1m 8) 

3,554 
(474) 
772 

115,966 
204,045 
10~005 

33g016 

591.890 

591,890 



Revenues: 
Ad valol~m taxes 
Intergovernmental rew nu~ : 

State revenue sharing 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget an d Actual 

Special Revenue Fun d 
Shreve M emorial Library Fund 

Year ended December 31, 2003 
(unaudited) 

Library fines 
Use of money and property - interest 
Other revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenditures - culture and recreation: 
Salaries, fringe benefits, and payroll taxes 
Supplies 
Utilities 
Repairs and maintenance 
Insurance 
Books and library materials 
M iscellaneous 
Capital expenditures 

Debt service- principal 

Total expenditm'es 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources - transfers in 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources 
over (under) expenditures 

Fund balan ce, beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 

See accompanying indepen dent auditors' report. 

Original 
and final 
budget Actual 

Variance with 
final budget 

positive (negative~ 

8A83,580 8,620,939 137,359 

414)637 

8,898,217 
78,000 
210,000 
197)629 

9)383r846 

4,587,156 
269,340 
492,800 
334,400 
114,500 

1,123,935 
540,150 

3)293)389 

10,755,670 

440,159 

394)026 

9,014,965 

92,117 
92,894 
140r848 

9)340r824 

4,534,681 
256,042 
467,918 
361,998 
125,100 
723,993 
409,541 

4,240~919 

llrt20r192 

440,661 

1)980)000 i ~980,000 
,,. 

(20,611) 

116,748 

14,117 

(117,106) 
(56r781) 

,.. (43,022) 

52,475 
13,298 
24,882 

(27,598) 
(10,600) 
399,942 
130,609 

(947)530) 

(364~522) 
(502) 

13~ 175~829 13r540r853 (365,024) - 

(3,791,983) 

5r058r423 

(4,200,029) 

4r739r031 
,. 

(408,046) 

(319,392) 

1,266,440 539,002 (727,438) 

9z791~389 9r791 r389 

11,057,829 ~  



Revenues: 
Ad valetem taxes 
lntergovemmen~ : 

Fedend gram 
State reverme slutda8 
Stale p~soner's grant 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget an d Actual 

Spe cial Revenue Fund 
Detention Facilities Fund 

Ome~ revenue* 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Criminal Justice: 

C4tddo Corr~ tional C~ ter: 
Salaries, ftinge benefits, and payroll taxes 
Supplies 
Utilities 
Repairs and maintenance 
Insurance 
Interest 
Mlscellemeous 
Reimbursement for non.statutol3, pdsonera 
Contracted services - p~son operations 

Total caddo correctional cemer 

Juvenile Detention Center: 
Salat'ie, s, fringe ben~'its, and payroll taxes 
Supplie~t 
Repairs and maimemmce 
Insurance 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 
Comractnd  r~rvi~  - prieon ol~ ti~  
Capital omlay 

Tote] juvcp, ile detention 

STAR Boot Ce, mp 

Total crlmiml justlce expandilm~ 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 
cxpea&tmes 

Year ended  December 31, 2003 
(unaudited) 

Other fie ir~ somce - transfer in 

Excess (deficiency) of rcveaucs and other financing 
sources over (under) expenditpres 

Fund balance, beginning of ycm' 

Fund balance, e~l of year 

Original 

bed|et 

5,179,110 

35#00 
251,700 
135,000 

424,700 

Final 
budget 

5,179,1 l0 

38,000 
251,700 
135,000 

Ac'tultl 

47,197 
244,282 
12g,o95 

419,574 

1,369 

Variance with 
final budget 

positive (negative) 

(4,860) 

9,197 
(7,418) 
46,903) 
(5,t26) 

t,369 

5t603,S10 5,603,810 515951193 (8.617) 

636,72 [ 
1O[,I00 
726,000 
201,800 
165,049 

531,51t 
(300,000) 
3,252~020 

5,314,20l 

636,721 
101.100 
726,000 
201,800 
165,149 

(1,878,617) 

1,800,000 

(78,617) 

637,300 
80,030 
632.417 
201,823 
16g,195 
22,301 
632,741 

3114gr206 

5,523,016 

1,286345 
2,439 

202,381 
37,450 

248,240 
40,796 
14,250 

1,832.301 

4,166 

7,359,483 

(l,764,29o) 

Ir790,000 

25,710 

80,642 $0t642 80,642 

$ 302el25 2.025 106,352 

47 

(579) 
21,070 
93,583 
(23) 

(3,049) 
(22,301) 
(101,230) 

(6,564) 
1,561 
(7,88]) 

10,500 
(24,725) 
40,204 
4,750 

17~845 

13,814 

122~gul4 

104,327 



 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 

Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules 

December 31, 2003 
(unandited) 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The Commission utilizes the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statem ents : 

(1) Prior to November 1, the Parish Administrator submits to the Commission a proposed operating 
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1. The operating budget includes 
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them . 

(2) A public hearing is then conducted, after proper offi cial journal notification, to obtain taxpayer 
co m m ents . 

(3) Prior to December 27, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance 

(4) The budget ordinan ce is structured such that revenues are budgeted by source, end appropriations are 
budgeted by department (function) or program expenditures. The Home Rule Charter provides that 
expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations on a functional (departmental or program) basis. 
Expenditures approved on a functional level are detailed by object account by the Parish 
Administrator en d Finance Director. Revisions to the budget as enacted at the department (function) 
or program level require Commission action. Revisions at the object level can be approved by the 
Parish Administrator without seeking approval of the Commissioners. Several such revisions were 
made during the year ended  December 31, 2003. 

(5) The Commission utilizes formal budgetary integration as a management control device and annual 
budgets are legally adopted for th e General Fund, certain Special Revenue Funds, and the Debt 
Service Fund. 

(6) Comparison of budgeted and actual amounts as shown in the accompanying financial statements 
includes the General Fund, those Special Revenue Funds which are included in the annual operating 
budget an d for which a budget to actual compar ison is required, an d the Debt Serv ice Fund. Annual 
operating budgets were not prepared for the Section 8 Housing Fund, Head Start, and Louisiana 
Community Development Block Grant Fund. Section 8 Housing prepares their budget on a grant 
entitlement basis rather than an annual bas is. The budget is not readily convertible to an annual 
operating budget and thus is not included in the finan cial statements. The Head Start Fund and the 
Louisian a Community Development Block Grant Fund were established to account for transactions 
involving federa l funds received by the Commission. An annual operating budget was not adopted 
for these funds. 

The capital budget appropriations which encompass the Capital Projects Funds present cumulative 
(project length) as oppo sed to annual budget amounts, and thus budget and actual comparisons are 
not repo rted  in the accompanying finan cial report for these funds. Actual to budget comparison is not 
required for the Internal Service Fund and Fiduciary Funds. 

(7) Th e basis of accounting applied to budgetary data presented is substantially consistent with the 
appropriate basis of accounting for each fund type for which an annual budget is prepared. 
Appropriations which are not expe nded lapse at year-end. 

(Continued) 



 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 

Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules 

December 31, 2003 
(unanditcd) 

Excess of Expenditures Over Budget- Major Funds 

For those funds for which a budget to actual comparison was made, actual expenditures on a budgetary basis 
exceeded budgeted expenditures on a line item basis as follows: 

Fund 

General Fund: 
General government: 
Finance 
Allocations to other entities 

Shreve M emorial Library- 
Culture and Recreation 
Debt service - intere st 

262,903 
52,298 

10,755,670 
440,159 

49 

Actualon a 
budgetary 
bas~ 

284,803 
52,772 

II,12~192 
440,661 

Negative 
variance 

(21,900) 
(474) 

(364,522) 
(502) 



 

C O M BIN IN G  FU N D 

FIN A N CIA L STA TEM EN TS 



 

N O NM A JO R 
G O V ER N M EN TA L FU N D S 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND S 

Courthouse M aintenance Fund - The Courthouse 
M aintenance Fund accounts for the proceeds of a special ad 
valorem tax dedicated for maintenance and operation of the 
parish courthouse and other public buildings. 

Solid W aste Disposal Fund - The Solid W aste Disposal 
Fund accounts for the proceed s of a special ad valorem tax, 
sales tax, and other revenues dedicated for maintenan ce and 
operation of th e parish solid waste system . 

Road and Bridge Fund - The Road and Bridge Fund 
accounts for th e proceeds of a special ad valorem tax, special 
assessments, an d other revenues dedicated for road an d bridge 
maintenan ce and improvement. 

Parks and Recreation Fund - The Parks an d Recreation 
Fund accounts for the proceeds of a special ad valorem tax 
and other revenues dedicated  for maintenan ce an d operation 
of the parish park system . 

Louisiana Com munity Developm ent Block Grant Fund - 
Th e Louisiana Community Development Block Grant Fund 
accounts for federal monies received by the Commission to 
provide funds for projects that allow for the development of 
viable urban  communities by providing decent housing an d a 
suitable living environment. 

Drainage Fund - The Drainage Fund accounts for th e 
proceeds of a special ad valorem tax and other revenues 
dedicated for maintenance of parish drainage facilities. 

Juvenile Court Fund - The Juvenile Court Fund accounts for 
the proceeds of a special ad valorem tax dedicated to the 

maintenan ce and ope ration of the parish juvenile court 
facility. 

Health Tax Fund - The Health Tax Fund accounts for the 
proceeds of a special ad valorem tax  ded icated to the 
maintenance and operation of th e par ish health unit an d 
animal service s. 



Law Offi cers W itness Fund - The Law Officers W itness 
Fund accounts for the proceeds of a special case charge on 
criminal matters. The revenues generated are dedicated to the 
payment of a special wi~ ess fee to ~aw officers who are 
called  as witnesses to testify in district co urt. 

Biomed ical Fund - The Biomedical Fund accounts for the 
proceeds of a special ad valorem tax dedicated to economic 
development. 

Section 8 Housing Fund - Th e Section 8 Housing Fund 
accounts for the proceed s of a federal grant program which 
are dedicated housing as sistance payments for th e benefit of 
low income individuals. Th e program is funded by the United 
States Departm ent of Housing and Urban Development, 

Riverboat Fund - The Riverboat Fund acc ounts for revenues 
received  by the Commission from bo arding fees related to the 
riverboat casinos. 

Reserve Trust Fund - This fund was established by the 
Caddo Parish Comm ission to provide finan cial resources in 

the event of a major interruption in budgeted revenues, a 
catastrophic natural disaster, an extraordinary economic 
development opportunity, or other oc casion requiring 
immed iate emergency funding needs or cash flow loan 
demand. Th is fund was established with a transfer from the 

Economic Development Fund - This fund was established 
by the Caddo Parish Commission to account for the proceed s 
from the sale of land at the old penal farm site, now known as 
the W est Shreveport Industrial Park. The sale proceeds as 
well as additional revenues are dedicated to economic 
development. 

Crim inal Justice Fund - The Criminal Justice Fund accounts 
for the proceeds of a special ad valorem tax dedicated for 
criminal justice system expenditures. 

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the 
acc amulation of resources for, an d the payment of, general 
long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. The Debt 
Service Fund is funded by the pro ceeds of a dedicated ad 

valorem tax. 



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial 
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of 
major capital facilities. The Commission has two nonmajor 
capital projects funds: 

Crim inal Justice Facilities Fund - The Crim inal Justice 
Facilities Fund accounts for the proceeds of a bond issue 
approved by the voters in 1988. Additional construction 
funding was also provided by the state of Louisiana. The 

issue was dedicated to the construction and renovation of jail 
facilities. 

Library Bond Yund - The Library Bond Fund accounts for 
the proceeds of certificates of indebtedness. The certificates 
are dedicated to acquiring, equipping, constructing, and 
improving th e public library system . 



Assets 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalen ts 
Lqves Uneuts 
Receivables, net 
Ad Valorem Taxes 
Paving Assessments 
Other 
Accru ed interest 

Due from other funds 
Due from other governmental units 

Total assets 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Combining Balance Sheet - By Fund Type 
Governmental Activities 

Nonmajor Govemmemal Funds 
December 31, 2003 

Special 
Revenue 
Funds 

1,131,510 
11,906,427 

15,690,573 
19,327 
439,697 
76,807 

2,585,923 
1,410,259 

Debt 
Service 
Fund 

8,254 
87.845 

1,620,516 

573 
71.741 

Capital 

Projects 
Funds 

571,233 
6,151,784 

3~682 
1,178,548 

Permanent 

Fund 

(Jail Site Fund) 

18,370 
56,323 

1.293 
100,000 

Total 

1,729,367 
8,202,379 

17,311,089 
19,327 
439,697 
118.355 

4,936,212 
1,410,259 

$ 33.260,523 1.788,929 7,941,247 1.175,986 44,166,685 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payab le 1,895.360 
Accrued liab ilities 416,068 
Due to other funds 4,801,899 
Due to other governmental units 280.000 
Deferred revenue 642,322 17.192 

Total liabilities 8,035,649 17,192 

Fund balances: 
Reserved : 
Debt service 
Encumbrances 
Contingencies 
Industrial development 
Revolving loans to gan eral fund 

Unreserved : 
Designated for subsequent 
year's expenditure 

Undesignated 

Total liab ilRies and 
fund balan ces 

248,868 
5,859,946 
205,720 

749,794 
18,160,546 

1.771,737 

7,941,247 

175,986 

1,895,360 
416,068 

4,801,899 
280,000 
659,514 

1,771,737 

248,868 
5,859,946 
205,720 
1,175,986 

8,691,041 
18,160,546 

25,224,874 1,771,737 7,941,247 1,175,986 36, I 13,844
, 

$ 33.260,523 ~  7941247 1,175,986 44,166,685 



CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Combining Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances- By Fund Type 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Governmental Activities 

Year ended December 31, 2003 

Revenues: 
Taxes $ 
Intergovemmen~  
Charges for anrvican 
Licenses and permits 
Gaming 
Fines and fnrfeit~es 

Use of M on ey and Property 
Rental, camping fees, an d other 
Investment earnings 
Net decrease in the fair va[an  of investments 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General government 
Criminal justice 
Health m d welfare 
Drainage 
Building facilities 
Highweys and streets 
Sanitation 
Een nomi~ Developmen t 
Culture and recreation 

Debt service: 
Principal retirement 
Fees and charges 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Special 
Revenue 
Funds 

18,117,384 
3,902,687 
100,826 
122,900 

2,522,343 
119,085 

159,953 
383,627 
05,566) 

Debt 
Service 
Fund 

1,760,376 

4,030 
(3,471 ) 

Capital 

Projects 
Funds 

216,761 
(74,789) 

Pem anent 
Fend 

(JailSiteFund) 

18.346 
(248) 

9,877,760 
3.902,687 
100,826 
122,900 

2,522,343 
119,085 

159,953 
622.764 
(154,074) 
233,928 

237,739 
2.601,499 
3.461,848 
424,160 

2,661,624 
4,420,410 
1,807,916 
2.088.052 
768,697 

1,465,000 
83,024 
615,770 

2,163,794 

6.681.305 (402,859) 141,385 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Refunding certificates issued 2,060,000 
Payment to refunding escrow agent (2,048,130) 
Trm~s fers in 2,470,015 

Transfers out ~7,316,452~ 
Total other financing sources (uses) (4,834,567) 

Net chan ge in fund balances 

Fund balan ces, beginning of year 

Fund balan ces, en d of year 

1,846,738 

23,378.136 

$ 25,224,874 

2,290 

(4,874,531) 
(4,872,241) 

(4,730.856) 

12,672,103 
7,941,247 

1,157,888 

1,175,986 

237,739 
2,601,499 
3.461,848 
424,160 

2,661,624 
4,420,410 
1,807,916 
2.088,052 
769,284 

1.829000 
83,024 
694,687 

21,070,243 

6,437,929 

2,060,000 
(2,048,130) 
2,472,305 

02,190,983) 
(9,706,808) 

(3,268,879) 







 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investm ents 

Accrued interest 
Due from other funds 

Total a~scts 

Fund Balances 

Total fund balan ces - 
Unreserved- designated for 
subsequent yeats expenditures 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shrvveport, Louisiana 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Nonmajor Capital Projvcts Funds 
Decem ber 31, 2003 

See accompan ying independent auditors' report. 

Crim inal 
Justice 
Facilities 
Fund 

202,907 
2,183,641 

Library 
Bond 
Fund Total 

368,326 
3,968,143 

571,233 
6,151,784 

14,095 25,587 39,682 
405)511 

$ 2)806)154 

773)037 

5)135)093 

1)1787548 

7)9411247 
. 

$ 21806) 154 511351093 7)941)247 



 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Chan ges in Fund Balances 

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds 
Year ended December 31, 2003 

Revenues: 
Interest 
Net decrease in the fair value of investm ents 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Culture and RecTeation 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

Other Financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
an d other fmancing sources 

over (under) expenditures 
an d other fmancing uses 

Fund balances, beginning of year 

Fund balances, end of year 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 

Criminal 
Justice 
Facilities 
Fund 

$ 56,778 

(15,352) 
41.426 

Library 
Bond 
Fund Total 

587 

587 

216,761 

(74,789) 
141.972 

(91,784) 

2~897~938 

(4~739~031) 

(4v739,031) 

(4,639,072) 

9.774.165 

(4,730,850 

12~672~103 

$ 2,806,154 5,135~093 7r941 ~247 

55 



IN TER N A L SER V ICE 

FU N D S 

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of 
serv ices provided by one fund of the Commission to other 
funds on a cost-reimbursement basis. The Commission has 
three intern al serv ice funds: 

Group Insurance Fund - The Group Insurance Fund 
accounts for the cost of providing group medical and life 
insurance co verage for Comm ission employees. The fund is 
used to account for contributions from Comm ission funds and 
withholdings from employees' payroll used to pay the costs of 
providing group coverage for Comm ission employee s. 

General Insurance Fuud - Th e General Insurance Fund 
accounts for the costs of maintaining cas ualty and workmen's 
compensation insuran ce co verage. 

Fleet Services Fuud - The Fleet Services Fund accounts for 
the repairs and maintenan ce activities provided by the 
Commission's central garage location for th e various 
departments of the Comm ission. 



Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investm ents 
Receivables 
Accrued interest receivable 
Due from other funds - Fleet Services 
Inventory 

Fixed assets: 
Land 
Sewer line 
Buildings 
Vehicles 
Equipment 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Fixed assets, net 

Total assets 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Combining Statement of Net Assets 

Internal Service Funds 

December 3 l, 2003 

Group 
Insurance 
l~ nd 

477,421 
1,8O9,676 
45,353 
I 1,659 
150,280 

General 
Insurance 
Fund 

Fleet 
Service 
Fund Total 

173,073 
463,959 

--  35,355 
2,986 
77,417 

717.435 

650,494 
2,273,635 

80,708 
14,645 

227,697 
521904 52t904 

88~259 3~300~083 

163,475 
107,541 
134,428 
14,579 
231322 

163,475 
107,541 
134,428 
14,579 
23t322 

443,345 

(105,079) 
3381266 

$ 2~494~389 717t435 426~525 3~638~349 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ --  
Accrued  liabilities 
Accrued insurance claims payable 243,270 
Due to other funds : 
Group Insurance 
General Insurance 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Invested  in capital assets 
Unrestricted 

352 

31,584 

18,080 
15,021 

150,280 
77.417 

18,432 
15,021 

274,854 

150,280 
771417 

243~70 31,936 260,798 536,004 

685.499 
338,266 

(1721539) 
165.727 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 214941389 717 435 426,525 3r638r349 

See accompanying independent auditors" report. 
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CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

Internal Service Funds 

Year ended December 31, 2003 

Operating revenues: 
Employer's contributions $ 
Employees' contributions 
Charges for sales and service 

Total revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Claims 
Cost of sales and serv ice 
Insurance premiums 
General and administrative 
Depreciation 
Other 

Total expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonopesating revenues (expense): 
|ntere st income 
Net decrease in th e fair value 
of investments 

Interest expense 

Group 
Insurance 
Fund 

2,117,832 
696,032 

2,813,864 

2,451~10 

290,952 
214,763 

General 
Insurance 
Fund 

931,961 

931,961 

256,535 

492,233 
92,075 

Fleet 
Service 
Fund Total 

11267,599 

1,267,599 

1,147,616 
22,964 

12,444 
337964 

2,117,832 
696,032 

2~199~560 

5,013,424 

2,707,945 
1,147,616 
806,149 
306,838 
12,444 
33.964 

2~957~125 840,843 1r216~988 5,014,956 

48,699 

(14,454) 

Total nonoperating revenues 34p235 

91.118 

8,278 

(2,577) 

5.701 

Transfer from Riverboat Fund --  --  

Chan ge in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year, restated 

Net assets, end of year 

(109,026) 

2,360~145 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 
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96,819 

588~680 

685.499 

50~611 ( 11532) 

(2,921) 

(2,921) 
44T905 

92,595 

73.132 

56~67 

(17,031) 
(2,921) 

165 727 3~ 102~345 



Cash flows from operating activities : 
Contributions 
Receipts from operations 
Payments to suppliers 
Claims paid 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

Internal Service Funds 

Year ended December 3 l, 2003 

Cash flows from noncapitnl financing activities: 
Interest paid 
Transfer in 

Net cash provided by noncapital 
financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchases of investm ents 
Sales of investm ent 
Interest received 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing 
activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash an d cash equivalents, end of year 

See accompan ying independent auditors' report. 

Group 
Insurance 
Fund 

$ 2,952,930 

G eneral 
Insurance 
Fu nd 

--  957,833 

(505,715) (584,541) 
(2~94#56) (261~468) 

112,884 
53.723 

111.824 

(121,134) 

87269 

118,866 

358~555 

$ 477~421 

5g 

Fleet 
Service 
Fund Total 

1,253,156 

(1,295,140) 

2,952,930 
2,210,989 

(2,385,396) 
(2~756)424) 

(2,921) (2,921) 
44)905 44)905 

41.984 

(121,134) 
112,884 
61~992 

53.742 

117,825 

532~669 

650~494 

(Continued) 



CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

Internal Service Funds 

Year ended December 31, 2003 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) $ 
Adjustments to reconcile operating 
income (loss) to net cash provided by 
(used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation 

(Increase) decrease in assets: 
Accounts receivable - other 
Due from other funds 
Inventory 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accrued insurance claims payable 
Accounts payable 
Accru ed liabilities 
Due to other funds 

Group 
Insuran ce 
Fund 

General 
Insurance 
Fund 

Fleet 
Service 
Fund Total 

(143,261) 91,118 50,611 (1,532) 

90,177 
48,889 25,872 

(43,546) (4,933) 
(233) 

12,44,1 

(14,443) 

(4,386) 

(26,470) 
15,021 

12,444 

75,734 
74,761 
(4,386) 

(48,479) 
(26,703) 
i5,021 

(74,761) (74,761) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities $ I47r741~ 111r8'24 141,984~ 22,099 

Noncash items: 
Net decrease in the fair value of 
investments $ (14,454) (2,577) 

See accompanying indepe ndent auditors' report. 

(17,031) 



FID U C IA R Y  

FU N D S 

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held as an agent 
for other govern ments. The Commission has two agency 
funds: 

Crim inal Court Fund - The establishment of this fund was 
mandated by the legislature to account for the procee~ds from 
ope rations of the First Judicial District Court. All fines, court 
costs, and bond forfeitures imposed by the Court are dedicated 
to trial costs and other operating expenditures. 

Jury Fund - The establishment of this fu nd was  man dated by 
the legislature to account for the proce eds from a special foc 
assessed on criminal cas es. Th e fees are used to provide 
compensation to jurors in criminal matters. 



Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Combining Statement of Assets and Liabilities 

Agency Funds 

December 31, 2003 

Due from other government agencies 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Due to other governmental agencies 

Total liabilities 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Crim inal 
Court Agency 

Fund 

30,731 
2,166 
77.296 

110.193 

69,156 
41.037 

$ 110,193 

Jury 
Agency  
Fund Total 

30,731 
2,166 
77,296 

110,193 

69,156 
41.037 

110,193 



 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 

Agency Funds 

Decem ber 31, 2003 

Additions 

Investment earnings 

Transfer in from crim inal court fund 

Other revenues 

Total additions 

D eductions 

M iscellaneous 

Transfer out to jury fund 
Total deductions 

See accompan ying independent auditors' report. 

$ 42 

806.415 

71,046 

17.717 

Total 

42 

71,046 

824.132 

806,457 88,763 895,220 

694,374 

71.046 

88,763 783,137 

71.046 

$ 765,420 88,763 854,183 
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IN D IV ID U A L FU ND  

SCH ED U LES 



CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Special Revenue Fund 
Courthouse M aintenan ce Fund 

Year ended December 31, 2003 
(unandited) 

Revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes 
Intergovernm ental - state revenue sharing 
Use of money and prope rty: 
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of 

investments 
Interest 

Other revenues 

Total re ven ues 

Expenditures: 
Building Facilities 

Courthouse 
Salaries, fringe benefits, and payroll taxes 
Supplies 
Utilities 
Repairs an d maintenan ce 
M aintenance contract 
]nsurance 
Interest 
M iscellaneous 
Capital outlay 

Total courthouse 
expenditures 

Francis Bickham Building and Governmen t Plaza 
Utilities 
Repairs an d mainten ance 
M iscellan eous 

Original and 
Final 
budget 

2,641,630 
120,100 

14,500 
3~000 

2~779)230 

1,430,921 
9,300 

502,000 
208,000 
60,000 
162,949 
4,220 

183,004 
22~136 

Actual 

2,672,154 
124,774 

1,429,654 
10,055 

430,545 
131,746 
47,500 
162,949 

Variance with 
final budget 

positive (negative) 

30,524 
4,674 

(189) 
8,366 
550 

1,267 
(755) 

71,455 
76,254 
12,500 

--  4,220 
78,326 104,678 
18~88o 37256 

104,200 
43,000 
42T430 

111,168 
20,893 
30)807 

(6,968) 
22,107 
I 1.623 

Total Bickham Building an d Govt. Plaza 
expenditures 18%630 162~868 26)762 

Total expenditures 

Exce ss of revenues over expenditure s 

2~772p160 

7,070 

2)472~523 

350,632 

299.637 

343,562 

Fund balance, beginning of year 2t341p735 2~341~735 --  

Fund balan ce, end of year $ 2t348)805 2~692)367 343)562 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 



Rev enue s: 
Ad valorem taxes 
Sales tax 

Intergovernman tal - state revenue sharing 
Use of money and property: 
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of 
investments 

Interest 
Other rev cnue s 

Total revenues 

Expe nditures- san itation: 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Rev an ues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget an d Aclual 

Special Revenue Fund 
Solid W aste Disposal Fund 

Year ended December 31, 2003 
(unaudited) 

Variance with 
Originnl Finnl final budget 
budget budget Actual positive (negative) 

$ 173,150 
11675~000 

1~8481150 

8,450 

69,500 
,22,500 

69,~  
22rSO0 

1~9481600 

(25,960) 
108,805 
65~817 

2,125,751 

(25,96O) 
39,305 
43T317 

1771151 



Revenues: 
Ad valorem tuxes 
intergovernmental: 
State revenue filming 
OthcT statu funds 

Use of money and property: 
Net increase (decrease) in fak value of 
investments 

Interest 
Otbe r revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Highways and Sheets 
Administrative 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Reven ues, gxpo nditunm, and 
Changes in Fund Balance- Budget an d Actual 

Special Revenue Fund 
Road and Bridge Fund 

Year ended December 31, 2003 
(unaud ited) 

Salaries, fringe benefits, and payroll taxes 
Supplies 
Utiliti~* 
Insurance 
Interest 
M issellaneons 

Total administrative 
expeadimres 

Road Maintenance 
Salaries, fiinge bcncfits, and payroll taxes 
Supplies 
Utilities 
Ro pain 
M aterials 
Right of W ay M aintenance 
M iscellaneous 

Total road maintenance 
expenditures 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

Fund balan ce, beginning of year 

Fund balan ce, end of yam 

$ 

Original 
budget 

4,324,020 

196,000 
60+000 

570,353 
15,000 
%000 

142,298 
2,800 

Final 
budget 

4,324,020 

196,000 
60,000 

48,500 
69~500 

4~698,020 

570,353 
15,000 
7,000 

142,298 
2,800 

Ac(ual 

4,366,767 

194,047 
109,251 

598,264 
15,601 
12,424 
142,298 

Variance with 
final budget 

positive (neeative) 

42,747 

(I,953) 
49,251 

(5,3~7) 
9,300 

46396 
t40~514 

(27,911) 
(601) 

(5,424) 

--  2,800 

2lllt588 13#54 

2,165,498 
12,000 
48,100 
556,000 
562,000 
330,000 
90,500 

2,165,498 
12,000 
48,100 
551,586 
562,000 
33~00ll 
90,500 

4r717r091 

(19,071) 
4,921t6t2 

$ 

4,921+612 

419061955 

4,420~410 

418,124 

4T921~612 

51339T736 

309,449 

2921267 

432,781 



Revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Revenues, Expendi~.ves, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget an d Actual 

Special Revenue Fund 
Parks an d Recreation Fund 

Yuar ended D~cember 31,2003 
(unaudited) 

Intergovernmental- st~c reven ue  sharing 
Use of  money and property: 
Net incrca.~ (decrease) in fair value of investments 
Rental, cam ping fens, and other 
Interest 

Other rcvso ues 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Culture and ~ereation: 
Salaries, fringe benefits, so d payroll taxes 
Supplies 
Utilities 
Repairs and maintenance 
Insuran ce 
M iscellaneous 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess of rev~'mes over expendituRs 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out 

Original 
budget 

814,960 
36,5O0 

13,750 
6,600 

., , 
5~500 

8771310 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
financing sources over (under) 
expenditures and other finan cing uses 29,647 

Fund balso en, beginning of year 

Fund balance , end of year 

See accompanying independent so ditofs' report. 

905p876 

$ 935T523 

Final 
budget 

814,960 
60,500 

13,750 
6,600 
15~500 

911r310 

610,984 
12,250 
31,750 
68,250 
39,805 
83.124 
1~500 

S47,663 

63,647 

63,647 

Actual 

824,440 
38,486 

(818) 
13,303 
10,351 
32r195 ,. 

917.957 

560,616 
6,467 
24,785 
64,350 
39,805 
71,574 
LI00 

768~697 ,, 

149,26~ 

Variance with 
final budget 

positive (neeative) 

9.480 
(22,014) 

50,368 
5,783 
6,965 
3,900 

11.550 
4O0 

781966 

85,613 

139,260 

905T876 

75,613 



 

CADDO PARIBit COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balan ce- Budget and Actual 

Special Revenue Fund 
Drainage Fund 

Year ended December 31. 2003 
(uanudited) 

Revenues : 
Ad vainrem taxes $ 
In~rgove~ mcnta]: 
Federal grants 
State revenue sharing 

Uae of money and pmperW: 
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 
Interest 

Other revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenditures - general governmen t - other: 
Salaries. fringe benefits, end payroll taxes 
Insurance 
Right of ways maintenance 
Rentals 
M isceltaneous 
Capital outlay 

Total expe nditures 

Exce ss of revenues over expenditures 

Other financing som'ces (uses): 
Tran sfczs out 
Tran sf~l~ in 

Excess of revenues and other financing 
sources over expenditures and other 
other finan cing uses 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance., end of year 

Origiu t 
budge t 

124,660 

52,500 

Fluid 
bmdget 

24,660 

15,900 
52,500 

m  

25.500 25,500 
500 500 

32,220 
37.159 
125,000 
50,000 
126,605 
10,000 

380T984 

822,176 

(798,500) 

23,676 

2~412~157 

$ 2~435~833 

(798,5OO) 
1421949 

Actual 

Variance wl~ 
final budget 

positive (negative~ 

35,086 I0,426 

15,900 
52,016 (484) 

(798,500) 
1421949 

(655,551) (655,551) 

166.625 259.935 93,310 



Revenues: 
Ad valo~  taxes 
Intergovernm ental: 
Federal grant 
Other state funds 
State revenue sharing 
Electronic monitoring 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, an d 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget an d Actual 

Year ended December 31, 2003 
(unan dited) 

Court costs en d fees 
Use of money and property: 
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 
Interest 

Other revenues 

Tntalrevenues 

Expenditures - general government-judicial: 
Court operations: 
Salaries, fringe benefits, and payroll taxes 
Supplies 
Utilities 
Repairs 
Insurance 
Interest 
Reimbursement from court 
M iscellaneous 
Capital outlay 

Original 
and final 
budget Actual 

1,912,870 1,934,617 

178,795 
50,120 
85,500 
60r000 

374A 15 

217,654 
53,046 
90,340 
60.000 

421.040 

105,000 118,969 

21,066 

2r413,651 

2,203,533 
28,600 
19,250 
58,500 
81,315 
33,750 

(21o,ooo) 
393,596 
5.400 

(I,787) 
5,871 
1~200 

2,479~910 

2,100,690 
36,613 
28,548 
81,717 
81,315 
8,741 

(380,700) 
421,922 

Variance with 
final budget 

positive (negative) 

21,747 

38,859 
2,926 
4,840 

46~625 

13.969 

(1,787) 
5,571 

102,843 
(8,o13) 
(9,298) 
(23,217) 

25,009 
170,700 

(28,326) 
1~864 3,536 

2~613~944 2r380,710 ~ 
233,234 

(Continued) 



 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Chan ges in Fund Balance - Budget an d Actual 

Special Revenue Fund 
Juvenile Court Fund 

Year ended December 31, 2003 
(unandited) 

Building maintenance: 
Salaries, fringe benefits, and payroll taxes 
Utilities 
Repairs 
M iscellaneous 
Reimbursement from detention facilities 
Capital outlay 

Total building maintenan ce 
expenditures 

Total expenditures 

Original 
and final 

149,804 
165,000 
66,575 
37,428 

(Igg3oo) 
8oo 

Actual 

144,365 
136,598 
63,081 
32,983 

Og~,700) 
774 

189.101 

Variance with 
fin al budget 

positive (negative) 

5,439 
28,402 
3,494 
4,445 

26 

41.806 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expen ditures (431,200) (89,901) 341,299 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
financing sources over (under) 
expe nditures an d other financing 
uses 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 

See accompan ying independent auditors' report. 

(31,200) 
18i~988 

310,099 

181~988 

341,299 

$ 150fl88 492,087 341,299 , 



 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Rvvenuns, Expan diturcs, and 
Changes in Fund Balance- Budget and Actual 

Spc~inl Revenue Fund 
Health Tax Fund 

Year ended December 31, 2003 
(an audited) 

Revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes 
Int~xgovarnmental: 
State revenue sharing 
Other state funds 

Var.~inatian , impoendin& boarding, licensing, and 
permit fees 

Use of money and property: 
Regional lab rc~tal 
laterest 

Other revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenditures - health and welfare; 
W omen's Community Health Center 
Re6ional Lab health unit 
Salaries, fringe benefits, and payroll taxes 
Utilities 
Repairs 
M iscellaneous 
Insurance 
Capital outlay 

Total Re gional Lab health 
unit cxpan dRures 

Animal services and mcequito control: 
Salaries, fringe be nefits, an d payroll taxes 
Inserance  
Interest 
Supplies 
Pest Conlrol 
Utilities 
Animal care 
Re pairs 
M iscellaneous 
Capital outlay 

Total animal and mosqail~ 
control expenditures 

Original Final 
budget budget 

,966,580 

98,850 

91,400 

145,000 
9.750 

54,750 

,966,580 

98,850 
210,000 

91,400 

145,000 
9.750 

Aet~al 

,982,453 

92,771 
204,701 

99,259 

145,000 
131958 

158,958 

12,000 12~000 20r397 

2r323T580 2~533~580 2,5581539 

47,733 
77,800 
16,650 
9,099 
966 

Variance with 
final budget 

positive (nel~a0ve) 

15,873 

(6,079) 
(5,299) 

7,859 

m  

4,208 

4,208 

~397 
24T959 

47,733 
77,800 
16,650 
9,O99 
966 

34,625 
71,172 
11,991 
8,182 
966 
897 

3,108 
6,628 
4,659 
917 

9O3 

1,259,216 
54,458 

250 
34,801 
98,931 
59,765 
95,017 
132,915 
124,495 
2,303 

(22,864) 

450 
(7,181) 
1,069 
(7,265) 
(21,297) 
(I 1,670) 
18,643 
397 

(Continued) 



Highland health unit: 

Salaries, fringe benefits, an d payroll taxes 
Repairs 
Utilities 
lnsuranes  
Misce|tanan es  
Capital outlay 

Total Highland health unit 
expan ditur~ 

Vivian health unit: 
Salarles~ fringe benefits, and payroll f~aXes 
Ittsuranes  
Repairs 
Utilities 
M iscellan eous 
Capital outlay 

Total Vivian health unit 
expenditures 

David Raines health ureter - repairs 

Total expendittwes 

Execs (deficiency) of revenu~ 
over (under) expenditures 

Exo~ss (den~ieacy) of revcn~  
an d other financing sources 
over (under) expenditures and 
other financing uses 

Fund balan ce, beginning ofyeer 

Fund balan ce, end of year 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Revan ues, Expenditures, an d 
Changes in Fund Balan ce- Budget an d Actual 

Special Revenue Fund 
Health Tax Fund 

Year ended December 31, 2003 
(unaudited) 

Original 
budget 

$ 275,271 
49,600 
98,800 
35,925 
87,506 
1~500  

Final 
budget 

275,271 
49,600 
98,800 
35,925 
87,506 
1~500 

Aetun l 

267,084 
52,125 
95,689 
35,925 
80,790 
1.187 

Variance with 
final budget 

uesitive (negative) 

8,187 
(2,525) 
3,111 

6,7~6 
313 

25,436 
485 

3,500 
11,150 
2,690 
500 

43~761 

28T00~) 

25,436 
485 

3,500 
11,150 
2,690 
500 

42~913 

28~000 

(1,395) 

154 
1,826 
43 
220 

(133,264) (263,264) (242,493) 20371 

(133,264) 
1~846T554 

1,713 ~90 

(350,089) 
118.461554 

11496F465 

(329,318) 
1,846,554 

1 517 236 

20,771 

20 771 



Revenues: 
Crim inal case charge 
Use of mon~, and property: 
Net increase (decrease) in fair 

value of investments 
Interest 

ToUtl revenues 

Expenditures: 
Crim inal Justice: 
Payments to law officers 
M iscellaneous 

CAD90 PARISH COM M LSSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, an d 
Changes in Fund Balan ce - Budget an d Actual 

Special Revenue Fund 
Law Officers W itness Fund 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 

Year ended Decem ber 31, 2003 
(unauditcd) 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Original 
and final 
budget Actual 

Variance with 
final budget 

positive (negative) 

24,000 20,841 (3,159) 

7~200 

31)200 

12,000 
42)015 

54~015 

(22,815) 

261~216 

(23,993) 

261,216 

6,000 

(3) 
5,997 

(1,178) 

$ 238~401 237~223 (Ifl78) 



Revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes 
Intargovem mentel revenues - 
state revenue sharing 

Use of mun ey and property: 
Interest 

Total revenues 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balan ce- Budget an d Actual 

Special Revenue Fund 
Biomedical Fund 

Expenditures- economic 
development: 

Salaries, fringe benefits, and 
payroll taxes 

Interest 
Reimburse Biomedical Research 
Foundation ope rating expenses 

M iscellaneous 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Fund balan ce, beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of yee r 

Year ended December 31, 2003 
(an audited) 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 

Original 
and final 

budget 

1,613,400 

76,]50 

2~000 

Actual 

1,628,009 

76,161 

317 

Variance with 
final budget 

positive (negative) 

1~691 ~550 1 ~704~487 12fl37 

46,240 
7,200 

1,699,950 
10~545 

49,442 
7,708 

699,947 
10~23 

(3,202) 
(508) 

3 
122 

1~763~935 1~767~520 (3r585) 

(72,385) 

383i883 

$ 311,498 

(63,033) 

383.883 

9,352 

320 850 9 352 



Gaming 
Use of money and property: 
Net increase (decrease) in fair 
value of invesWaso ts 

intercet 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
General government: 
Administration 
Other 

Debt service - principal and 
interest 

Total expenditeres 

Exce ss of revenues 
over expen ditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Refunding certificates issued 
Paymen t to refunding escrow agent 
Transfer in 
Transfer out 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues and other 
fmancing sources over 
(under) expenditures 
and other finan cing uses 

Fund balan ee~ beginning of year 

Fund balan ce , end of year 

CADDO PARISH COM MISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balan ce- Budget an d Actual 

Special Revenue Fund 
Riverboat Fund 

Year ended December 3 I, 2003 
(unaudited) 

Original 
budget 

Final 
budget , 

$ 2,420,000 2,420,600 

Variance with 
final budget 

Aetue l positive (aagnd ve) 

2,408,506 (11,494) 

--  --  (350) (350) 
3tl50 3r150 6~706 3~556 

77,265 
172,090 

445,790 

695rl45 

77,265 
99,590 

445~790 

722r645 

40503 
194,590 

433~917 

668r710 

37,062 
5,000 

11~873 

53v935 

1.728,005 1,700,505 1,746,152 45,647 

m  

(11994r905) 

2,060,000 
(2,048,130) 

49,563 
(2,009,90S) 

2,060,000 
(2,048,130) 

15o~ooo 

(266~900) 
447~639 

(409,837) 
447~639 

(202,320) 
447:639 

1801739 37 802 245 319 207r517 



 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shrcvelx~  Louisiana 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balan ~ - Budget and Actual 

Special Revan ue Fund 
Reserve Trust Fund 

Year ended December 31. 2003 
(unaudited) 

Revenues: 

Net increase (decxe~se) in the fair value of investments $ 
Interest income 
Sale of land 

Total expenditures - 8en~  government 

Excess of revenu~ over expenditures 

Other financing somv.es - h'ansfers in 

Exou~s of revenues and other finant~ g 
sources over expenditt~ s 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 

Varin e.e with 
Original Final final budget 
budget budget Actual positive (negative) 

114,500 
90tO00 

(29,956) 
108.147 
90)000 

611,560 808,674 772,359 

5r087t587 5)087,587 5,087.587 

$ 5 699.147 5)896)261 51859F946 

(29,956) 
(6.353) 

(36~309) 
(6) 

06,3i5) 



Rcvcnnes; 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Revenues, 
Changes in Fund Balance 

Expenditures, and 
-  Budget and Actual 

Special Reven ue Fund 
Econo~nin Development Fund 

Year ended December 31, 2003 
(unauditcd) 

Original 
budget 

Gaming $ 91,500 
Intesgovemmental: 
State Economic Development Grant 

Use of money emd property 
Parking Rental 
Net increase (decxcase) in the fair value 
of invcsMlcnts 

Interest 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Economic Development 
M iscellaneous 

Total cxpenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) - transfers out 
De ficiency of revenues emd other financing 
sources under expenditures and other 
other financing uses 

Fund be la~ce, beginning of yusr 

Fund balance, end of year $ 

41500 

97rgO0 

182,00O 
2~845 

Final 
budget 

91,500 

,670,969 

1.800 

317~80 
21845 

Actual 

113,837 

1,724.613 

1.650 
(1~75) 

6~198 

IT844T923 

317,680 
21852 

Variance with 
final budget 

positive (neltafive) 

22,337 

53.644 

050) 
(I.375) 

Ir698 

76r154 

(87,045) 1,448.244 1,524,391 76,147 

(87,045) (87,045) (64.542) 

324~833 

23%788 

324~833 

2371788 

324a833 

260~291 

22,503 



 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance- Budget and Actual 

Special Revenue Fund 
Criminal Justice Fund 

Year ended December 31, 2003 
(unaudited) 

Revenues: 
Ad valo~m taxes 
Intergovemmental: 
State revenue sharing 

Interest Income 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Criminal Justlce- other 

Total expendian'es 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfer in 
Transfer out 

Excess of revean es and other financing 
sources over expenditures and other 
financing us~ 

Fund balance, be ginning of year 

Fund balance, end of yeer 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Original Final 

budl~el budget 

,544,890 

65,000 

1,544,890 

65,000 

Actual 

,610,787 

73,730 
475 

Variance with 
final budget 

positive (negative) 

65,897 

8,730 
475 

172,771 

172,771 

1)512,221 

1,250,000 1,400,000 1,250,000 

(2,650,000) (2,8O0,000) (2,640,000) 

10,070 

2~867 
$ 39,937 

10,070 122,221 

29,867 

39,937 

48,053 

12,151 



 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Chan ges in Fund Balan ce - Budget and Actual 

Debt Service Fund 

Year ended December 31, 2003 
(uun uditod) 

Revenues: 
Ad vaiorem taxes 
Use of money arid property: 
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of 

investm ents 
Interest 

Total revenues 

Expen ditures - Debt Service: 
Principal retirement 
Interest 
Fees and charges 
Administration 
M iscellaneous 

Total expendi~a~res 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

Fund balan ce, beginning of year 

Fund balan ce, end of year $ 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

O riginal and 
Final 

budget 

1,684,550 

1,465,000 
615,770 
50,702 
29,890 

2,161,362 

(440,312) 

2,174,596 

1,734,284 

Actual 

Variance with 
final budget 

positive (negative) 

1,760,376 75,826 

1,465,000 
615,770 
52,633 
29,932 

459 

2,163,794 

(402,859) 

2,174,596 

1.771.737 

(3,471) 
(32,470) 
39,885 

(1,931) 
(42) 
(459) 

(2,432) 

37,453 

37.453 
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Fiscal 

year 
1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

1999 

2000 

2001 

2002 

2003 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Fiscal years ended December 31, 1994 through De cember 31, 2003 

Assessed 
value 

$ 942,377,110 

949,228,840 

988,098,350 

1,032,835,570 

1,053,910,790 

1,077,027,570 

1,131,885,010 

1,148,501,080 

1,151,282,410 

I, 190,764,070 

Estim ated 
actual value 

8,170,952,961 

8,263,458,800 

8,577,996,466 

8,935,788,933 

9,119,621,300 

9,318,879,200 

9,814,671,700 

9,981,031,476 

10,086,000,233 

10,470,241,933 

Note: Assessed values are established by the Caddo Parish Tax Assessor on January 1st 
of each year at approximately 10-15%  of actual market value, depending upon the 
property classification. A revaluation of all prope rty is required to be completed 
no less than  every  four years. The last such revaluation was completed  for the 
tax roll of 2000. The next revaluation will be completed  as of January 1, 2005 for 
th e 2004 tax roll. 

Unaudited - see accompanying indepe ndent auditors' report. 

Table 4 

Ratio of 
assessed value 
to es tim ated 
actual value 

113%  

11.5%  

11.5%  

11.6%  

11.6%  

11.6%  

11.5%  

11.5%  

11.4%  

11.4%  



 



F~cal 

year 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Special Assessment Collections 

Fiscal years ended December 31, 1994 through December 31, 2003 

Am ount of 
installm ent 
nssessm oll~ 

due 

$ 48,935 
40,859 
31,460 
67,511 
79,794 
77,711 
68,174 
59,645 
54,152 
39,128 

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Total 
I~venne 

collec ted 

89,103 
32,339 
122,518 
192,309 
116,467 
122,905 
121,092 

94,817 
68,423 
108,487 

Table 6 

Percentage of 
revenue to 
assessm ents 

due 

182.08%  
79.15%  
389.44%  
284.86%  
145.96% 
158.16%  
177.62%  
158.97%  
126.35%  
277.26%  
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Caddo Parish Comm ission 

Caddo Par ish School Board 

City of Shreveport 

CADDO PARISH  COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Computation of Direct an d Overlapping Debt 

December 31, 2003 

Net debt 

9,798,263 

314,786,527 

325.833A 10 

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Percentage of 
debt applicable 
to the Parish 

100%  

100%  

99% 

Table 9 

Parish's 
share 
of debt 

9,798,263 

314,786,527 

322,575,076 

647,159,866 



 



Fiscal 

year 
1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

1999 

2000 

2001 

2002 

2003 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Demographic Statistics 

Fiscal years ended December 31, 1994 through December 31, 2003 

Population (1) 
246,435 

246,690 

247,301 

244,943 

242,471 

241,587 

252,161 

252,574 

252,770 

254,216 

M edian 

age 
33.4 

33.3 

33.3 

34.3 

34.3 

34.3 

34.5 

35.4 

35 

34.7 (2) 

School 

enrollment (3) 
49,310 

49,139 

48,843 

48,018 

46,832 

46,653 

45,120 

44~43 

44,722 

44,532 

Notes: 
(1) Research Division, Louisian a Tech University 
(2) Center for Business Economic Research, Louisiana State University, Shreveport 
(3) Caddo Parish School Board 
(4) Louisiana Department of Labor 

Unaudited- see accompan ying independent auditors' report. 

Table 11 

Unem ploym ent 
rate (4) 

6.3%  

5.6%  

6.3%  

6,8% 

4.5%  

3.8% 

5.2% 

6.4% 

6.8% 

6.1%  
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CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

M iscellaneous Statistics 

Decem ber 31, 2003 

Date of first settlem ent 

Date of parish form ation 

Area- square m iles 

Form of government 

Date established 

Number of employees 

Square footage of major buildings: 
Caddo Parish Courthouse 
Caddo Parish Comm ission Building 
Caddo Parish Health Unit 
Fleet Services Garage 
Juvenile Court 
Caddo Correctional Center 
Caddo Animal Control Center 

Library (main branch) 
Government Plaza (Parish portion) 

Roads and bridges: 
M iles of roads 
Number of bridges maintained 

Parks an d recreation: 
Parks - numbe r of acres 
Num ber of playgrounds 
Numbe r of picnic areas 
Number of boat launching ramps 

Public libraries: 
Numbe r of library bran ches 
Numbe r of books 
Annual circulation 

San itation: 
Number of collection com pactors 
Tons of solid waste collected 

Unaudited - see  accompan ying independent auditors' report. 

Table 14 

1835 

1838 

852 

Council-M anager 

1984 

415 

205,500 
44,385 
46,056 
21,000 
57,244 
311,000 
13,700 
80,000 
38,462 

803 
176 

875 
11 
12 
7 

20 
670,000 

1,100,000 

17 
15,250 



Com m issioner: 

Lindora Baker 

Joyce M . Bowman 

Robert Charles Brown 

Forrest A. Davis 

Danny Joe Dumas 

Kenneth R. Epperson 

M ichael D. Long 

Gilford L. Gillen 

Rose W ilson M cCulloch 

James H. M orris 

Carl A. Pierson 

Ronald A. W ebb, St. 

Patrick C, W illiam s 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Compensation Paid to Commissioners 

December 31, 2003 

Uaaudited -see accompanying independent auditors' repo rt. 

Table 15 

Com pensation 

1,409 

17,538 

17,564 

17,538 

17,538 

16,076 

17,538 

17,538 

17,538 

17,538 

18,712 

17,538 

$ 211,603 



CADDO PARISH  COM M ISSIO N 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

OM B Circular A-133 Report 

Decem ber 31, 2003 

(W ith Independent Auditors' Reports Thereon) 
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KPM G LIP 
Suite 1900 
333 Texas Street 
Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Independent Auditors' Report on Com pliance and on Internal Control 
Over Financial Repo rting Based on an Audit of Financial Statem ents 
Perform ed in Accordance W ith Governm ent Auditing Standards 

M embers of the Caddo Parish Commission 
Caddo Parish Courthouse 
Shreveport, Louisiana: 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, the aggregate 
remaining fund information, each nonmajor governmental, internal service and fiduciary fund of the 
Caddo Parish Commission (the Commission) as of and for the year ended Decembe r 31, 2003, which 
collec tively comprise the Commission's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon 
dated M ay 28, 2004 with an explan atory paragraph discussing th e adoption of a new financial repo rting 
model in 2003. W e conducted our  audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America an d the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standard~, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Com pliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assuran ce about whether the Commission's finan cial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed  tests of its complian ce with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct an d material effect on the 
determination of finan cial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 

provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disc losed no instances of noncomplian ce that are required to be reported  under 
Government Aud iting Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Repo rting 

In plan ning and pe rforming our audit, we considered the Commission's intern al control over finan cial 
repo rting in order to determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expre ssing our opinion on the 
finan cial statem ents an d not to provide assurance on the internal control over finan cial repo rting. Our 
co nsideration of the intern al control over financial reporting would not nece ssarily disclose all matters in 
the intern al co ntrol over finan cial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a 
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the intern al control components does not 
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be  material in re lation to 
the financial statements being audited may occur an d not be detec ted with in a timely period by employees 
in the normal course of perform ing their assigned functions. W e noted no matters involving the internal 
co ntrol over finan cial repo rting an d its ope ration that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
we noted other ma tters involving the internal control over finan cial reporting, which we have reported to 
management of the Commission in a separate letter dated M ay 28, 2004. 



This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Commissioners, management
, the state of 

Louisiana Legislative Auditor, an d federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended 
to be an d should not be used by anyone other then  these specified  parties. 

M ay 28, 2004 

G - LL'P 



KPM G LLP 
Suite 1900 
333 Texas Street 
Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Independent Auditors' Report on Com pliance W ith Requirem entS Applicable to  Each 
Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance W ith 
OM B Circular A-133 and on the Schedule of Expenditures of Fed eral Award s 

To the M embers of the Caddo Parish Commission 
Caddo Parish Courthouse 
Shreveport, Louisiana: 

Com pliance 

We have audited the compliance of the Ceddo Parish Commission (the Commission) with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the US. O~ ce of Mcmagement and Budget (OMB) Circular /1-133 
Compliance Supplement that arc applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 
2003. The Commission's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section 
of the accompanying schedule of f'mdings an d questioned  costs. Complian ce with the requirements of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its major federal programs is the responsibility of the 
Commission's man agement. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Commission's compliance 
based  on our audit. 

W e conducted  our audit of co mpliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted  in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained  in Government Auditing 

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and oMB Circular A-133, Aud its of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur an ce about whether noncomplian ce 
with the type s of complian ce requircma nts referred to above that could haw  a direct and material effect on 
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
Commission's complian ce with those require ments and perform ing such oth er pro cedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. W e be lieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determ ination on the Commission's complian ce with those 
requirements. 

In our  opinion, the Caddo Parish Commission complied, in all material respects, with the requirements 
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal program s for the year ended December 31, 
2003. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed one instance of noncomplian ce with those 
requirements, which is required to be reported in accordan ce with OM B Circular A-133 an d which is 
described in the acco mpanying schedule of findings an d questioned  costs as item 03-1. 

llll 3 



Internal Control Over Compliance  
The management of the Caddo Parish Commission is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we co nsidered the Comm ission's 
internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on complian ce an d to test and report on internal co ntrol over complian ce  in accordance with OM B 
Circular A-133. 

Our consideration of the internal co ntrol over compliance would not nece ssarily disclose all matters in the 
internal co ntrol that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a co ndition in which the design 
or operation of one or more of the intern al control compo nents does not reduce  to a relatively low level the 
risk that noncomplian ce with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, an d gr an ts that 

would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected 
within a timely pe riod by employees in the normal cour se of perform ing their assigned functions. W e 
noted no matters involving the intern al control over complian ce and its operations that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, the aggregate 
remaining fund information, each nonmajor governmental, internal service and fiduciary fund of the 
Caddo Parish Commission as of and for the year ended  December 31, 2003, and have issued our report 
thereon dated M ay 28, 2004, which includes an explan atory paragraph discussing the adoption of a new 
financial repo rting model in 2003. Our  audit was perform ed  for the purpose of forming an  opinion on the 
basic finan cial statements taken as a whole. Th e acco mpanying sched ule of expenditures of federal awards 
is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required  by OM B Circular A-133 an d is not a required 

part of the basic financial statements. Such inform ation has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic finan cial statements an d, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in re lation to the bas ic finan cial statements taken as a whole. 



 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended  December 31, 2003 

Grantor title 

U.S. Department of Agriculture 

Pass-through State Department of Food end 
Nutrition Services- Food Nutrition Grant 

Total U.S. De partment of Agricu lture 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban De velopment 

Pv~-thmngh Louisiana Community Development Block 
Grant Division nf  Administratinu - Community 
Development Block Grant 

Section 8 Housing Ass~  Program 

Total U.S. Department of Housing end 
Urban Development 

U.S. Department of Jus tke 

pass-through Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement 
and Administration of Crlminal Justice- 

Title V Delinquency Prevention Program (Truancy Grant~ 
Pa~s-through Louisiana Commission on Law 
Enforcement en d Administration of Criminal Justice- 
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant 

Total U.S. Department of Justien  

U.S. Federal Emergency M anagemen t Agency  

Pass-fi~'ough Louisiana Offi ce nf  Emergency 
Preparedness- Hazard M itigation Grant - 

Acquisition Project 

Total U.S. Fed eral Emergency  M anagement 
Agency  

U.S. De partment of Hen lth and Human Services 

Pass-through Louisiana Office of Youth Development 
Title W -E ofthe Social Security Act-Federal Payments 
for Foster Care en d Adoption Assistance 

Head Start 

Total U.S. Department of Health en d 
Human Services 

See eccompun ylug uotcs to sched~de of ~xpcoditures of fedcvd awsrds. 

Federal 
CFDA 
number 

Grant 
number 

10.550 N/A 

14.219 

14.871 

578741 

LA 184V003-005 

16.548 W 02-1-002 

16.523 

83.548 

93.658 

93,600 

Federal 
expendlinres 

47.196 

47.196 

231,722 

429,074 

660,796 

36,295 

N/A 

06CH6376/25 

218,846 

8e255~000 

81473,846 

$ 9,518 106 



 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

December 31, 2003 

(1) General 
The accompanying sched ule of expenditures of fed eral awards includes the federal grant activity of the 

Caddo Parish Commission (the Commission) primary government and is presented using the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Th e information in this sched ule is presented  in accordance with the 

requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. Th erefore, some m ounts presented in this sched ule may differ from amounts presented in

, 

or used  in the preparation of, the Commission's primary government finan cial statements. 

(2) Subreeiplun ts 

Of the federal expe nditures presented in the sched ule, the Commission provided federal awards to 
subrecipients as  follows: 

Head Start 

Federal 
CFDA 
num ber 

Am ount 
provided  to 
subreeipients 

93.600 $ 8,255,000 



 

CADDO PARISH  COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended December 31, 2003 

Section 1 - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Primary Government Financial Statements 

Type of repo rt issued : unqualified ovini0n 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

~ M aterial weaknesses identified? N_ rio 

~ Reportable conditions in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the primary government finan cial 
statements? None repo rted 

Noncompliance material to prim ary government financial statements noted ? No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major program: 

~ M aterial weaknesses identified? No 

~ Reportable conditions in internal control over major program? None revorted 

Type of an ditor's report issued on compliance for major program: uen ualified opinion 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordan ce with section 510(a) of OMB Circular 
A-1337 Yes 

Identification of major program : 

CFDA num ber Name of fed eral program or cluster 

14.871 United States Departm ent of Housing an d Urban  Development - 
Section 8 Housing Assistan ce Program 

93.600 United States Department of Health and Human Services - Head 
Start 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A an d Type B programs: $300,000 

Auditec qualified  as a low-risk auditee under section 530 of OM B Circular A-133: Ye_ ~s 

Sec tion 2 - Prim ary Governm ent Financial Statem ent Findings  

N one 

7 (Continued) 



 

CADDO PARISH COM M ISSION 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year ended December 31, 2003 

Section 3 - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

Item : 03-1 

Grant: Section 8 Housing Assistance Program 

Specific requirem fnt: The Caddo Parish Comm ission's administrative plan must state the method used to 
determine that the rant to an owner is reasonable in comparison to rent for other comparable unassisted units. 
The Caddo Parish Commission mas t maintain records to document the basis for the determination that rent to 
the owner is a reasonable rent. 

Condition: Th e Caddo Par ish Comm ission utilizes a rent reasonableness worksheet whereby the rent is 
compared to th e rent of th ree comparable units, to ensure it is not greater th an the largest rent. During our audit, 
we noted one instance in which the rent exceed ed  the amount determ ined on th e rent reasonableness worksheet. 
It appears errors were made in the preparation of this particular rent reasonableness worksheet and that the rents 
in fact were less th an the rent reas onableness workshce t. 

Context: Out of a total sample of 30 tenants, four  were required  to have rent reasonableness checklists 
performed . Of these four, one instance  was noted  in which the rent exceeded  the am ount determined  on the rent 
reasonableness worksheet. 

Effect: The Caddo Par ish Commission is not in compliance with established  laws and regulations. 

Recom m endation: The Caddo Par ish Comm ission should establish procedures whereby someone other than  the 
preparer checks the rent reasona bleness worksheets for accuracy to ensure that the Commission is in complian ce 
with progr am re quirements. 



M ay 28, 2004 

KPM G LLP 
Suite 1900 

333 Texas Street 
Shreveport. LA 71101-3692 

The M embers of the Caddo 
Parish Commission 

Dear Comm issioners" 

W e have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities of the Ced do Parish Commission 
(the Commission) and the combining, individual fund, and government-wide financial statements of the 
Commission as of end for th e year ended December 31, 2003, an d have issued our report thereon dated 
M ay 28, 2004. In planning and perform ing our audit of the financial statements of the Comm ission, we 
considered internal control in order to determine our auditing procedures for th e purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements an d not to provide assuran ce on internal control. W e have not 
co nsidered the internal control since the date of our report. 

During our audit, we noted certain matters involving intern al control and other operational matters that are 
pre sented  for your consideration. These comments and recommendations, all of which have been 
discussed with the appropriate members of man agement, are intended to impro ve internal control or result 
in other operating efficiencias and are summarized as follows: 

During our review of property tax receivables, we noted that for the past two years (2001 an d 2002), write- 
offs as a percentage of the total receivable have been 5.14%  and 4.84% , respe ctively, and the allowan ce as 
a percentage of the total receivable has been established  at 4.25% for 2001, 2002, and 2003. W e 
recommend the Commission evaluate the be nefits of its hiring a th ird party to help with collections for 



The M embers of the Caddo 
Parish Commission 

M ay 28, 2004 
Page 2 

SHREVE M EM ORIAL LIBRARY 

The Shreve Memorial Library (SML) is reported as a Special Revenue Fund within the primary 
government financial statements of the Commission. As discussed in our prior year letter to you, the 
accounting for the SM L is performed  by the City of Shreveport with very limited involvement and review 
by management of the Commission. Adjustments and reporting issues are only addressed as part of the 
year-end financial statement preparation. Specifically, there are no controls or process in place to an alyze 

and adjust the property tax deferral. Each year we propose adjustm ents to properly record the deferral of 
prope rty taxes. W e recommend that the Commission establish controls through monthly reviews of the 
accounting records that will enable the Commission to address acco unting and reporting issues th roughout 
the year. 

M aun gement's Response - Th e Commission has established controls in place to review the finan cial 
activity of the SM L. The Commission receives monthly finan cial statements for SM L an d these 
statements are closely reviewed for inconsistencies or irregularities. The prope rty tax deferral is an 
accounting en*33' that can only be recorded at year-end since  pro perty taxes are not collected until after the 
end of the fiscal year. The entry does not require nor can  it be reviewed throughout the year. Given that 
th e Comm ission has no direct accounting function involving the SM L it would be difficult for th e 
Commission to determ ine the en try nece ssary to record deferred pro pe rty taxes. However, th e 
Commission will discuss the pro perty tax deferral with SM L managemen t an d work with SM L 
management to take the necessary steps to ensure the entry to record deferred prope rty taxes is made prior 
to the closing of the books for the year. 

Investment tran sactions (the purchase an d sale of securities) for the in-house portfolio are initiated by the 
Director of Finance via an email to the Comm ission's th ird party custodial agent, Argent Trust. The e- 
mails are the sole source  of proof that the Director of Finance  is the individual that appro ved  the 
tran saction. W e noted  th e e-mails for each transaction ar e not retained by the Commission. W e 
recommend the Comm ission retain the corresponding e-mail related to each investm ent tran saction to 
show proo f th e Dire ctor of Finan ce approved  each transaction. 

M anagem ent's Response - The Finan ce  Depar'un en t will retain all correspondence to its custodial agent 
for its investment transactions. 

During procedures perform ed over the retirement of capital assets, it was noted that adequate supporting 
documentation was not retained to support each capital as set retirement. W e recommend the Commission 
implement a policy to retain adequate supporting reco rds for each capital asse t it retires. 

M anagem ent's Response - The Comm ission has  im plemented  a po licy to docum ent all capital asset 
retirements through the preparation of a prope rty accountability form. The property accountability form 
documents the pur chase, transfer, or disposition of an as set item. The Finan ce Deparlment will also 
conduct procedures to periodically review a sample of the asset items to determine the status of those 
item s. 



The M embers of the Caddo 
Parish Commission 

M ay 28, 2004 
Page 3 

It should be  noted that our audit procedures are designed primarily to enable us to form an opinion on the 
finan cial statements and, therefore, may not bring to light all weaknesses in systems and procedures which 
may exist. W e aim, however, to use our knowled ge  of the Commission's organization gained during our 
work to make comments an d suggestions which we hope will be useful to you. 

W e would like to take th is opportunity to thank the pe rsonnel of the Commission for their cooperation an d 
assistance  during the audit. 

This report is intended solely for th e information and use  of th e M embers of the Commission, 
man agement, th e Louisian a Legislative Auditor, and federal awarding agencies an d is not intended to be 
and should not be used by an yone other than these specified  parties. 

Very truly yours, 

~ - LL"P 



Item  02-1 

Snm m ~wy Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
12/31/03 

Status: Beginning in June 2003, to ensure the Commission is in compliance with the rent 
reasonableness requirem ent, the Com mission established a re view process where by its 
revenue an alyst reviews all rent reasonableness worksheets for accuracy and 
completeness. In addition, th e Caddo Parish Adm inistrator only approves th ose housing 
applications th at meet the re nt re asonableness requirement. 

Property Tax Receivable - 
Status: The Parish has hired a 3rd party collec tion agency an d believes this will enable 

the Parish to collect on a large part of the un paid taxes. The Commission will re view the 
allowan ce again in 2004. 

Sec tion 8 - 
Status: A policy was im plemented  to ensure that these reviews are docum ented. 

Inform ation System s - 
Status: A disas ter rec overy plan  was im plemented during the year. 

Sln'eve M em orial Library - 
Status: The Commission continues to review the financials every month, however, until 
the Commission is able to solely han dle the accounting for the library, the Parish is doing 
all that is reasonable. 

Fleet Service Fund Balan ce Deficit: 
Status: The deficit was  eliminated in 2003 

Inves tm etns - 
Status: The investment account is re viewed an d/or reconciled m onthly by th e Assistant 
Director of Finance in order to ensure adeq uate segregation of duties. 

GASB 34 Reporting M odel - 
Status: GASB 34 was im plem ented in 2003 



Finding: 003-1 

Corrective Action Plan 
Year Ended Decem ber 31, 2003 

Condition: The Caddo Parish Commission utilizes a rent reasonableness worksbe et 
whereby the rent is compared to the rent of three comp arable units, to ensure it is not 
greater than the largest re nt. During our audit, we noted one instance in which th e rent 
exceeded  the am ount determ ined  on th e re nt reasonableness worksheet. It appears errors 
were  made in the preparation of this particular rent reasonableness worksheet and th at the 
rent in fact was less than the rent reasonableness worksheet. 

Context: Out of a total sample of 30 tenan ts, four were required to have rent 
re asonableness chac H ists perform ed . Of th e four, one instance was noted in which the 
re nt exceeded th e am ount determ ined on the re nt reasonableness worksheet. 

Effect: The Ced do Parish Commission is not in compliance with established  laws an d 
re gulations . 

Recom m endation: The Cadde  Parish Comm ission should establish proced ures where by 
som eone oth er th an th e preparer checks th e re nt reasonableness worksheets for accuracy 
to ensure th at th e Comm ission is in compliance with  program  requirements. 

Contact Person: Erica R. Bryan t, Direc tor of Finance 

Corrective Action Planned: Beginning in June 2003, to ensure the Co mmission is in 
compliance with  the re nt reas onableness requirem ent, th e Co mm ission established  a 
re view process whereby its revenue an alyst re views all tent reasonab leness works heets 
for accuracy an d completeness. In addition, the Caddo Parish Administrator only 
approves those housin g applications that meet the re nt reasonableness requirement. Th e 
worksheet that was  noted  not to be in complian ce with  the re nt re asonableness 
requirement was prepared prior to June 2003. The Co mmission will co ntinue its review 
and approval process to ensure compliance with pro gram  requirem ents. 


